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THE GEO GROUP, INC.
PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

THE GEO GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE THIRTEEN AND THIRTY-NINE WEEKS ENDED

SEPTEMBER 26, 2004 AND SEPTEMBER 28, 2003
(In thousands except per share data)

(UNAUDITED)
Thirteen Weeks Ended Thirty-nine Weeks Ended
September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003 September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003
Revenues $148,279 $141,778 $437,556 $409,746
Operating expenses 121,028 126,861 365,129 352,062
Depreciation and amortization 3,604 3,296 10,371 9,975
General and administrative expenses 10,629 9,522 32,602 28,572
Operating income 13,018 2,099 29,454 19,137
Interest income 2,114 1,705 6,906 4,249
Interest expense (5,167) (5,558) (16,662) (11,649)
Write off of deferred financing fees — (1,989) (317) (1,989)
Gain on sale of UK joint venture — 61,034 — 61,034
Income before taxes, equity in earnings of
affiliates and discontinued operations 9,965 57,291 19,381 70,782
Provision for income taxes 4,567 28,154 8,405 34,062
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net of income
tax of $388, $372, $870 and $1,863,
respectively 583 514 1,248 2,572
Income from continuing operations 5,981 29,651 12,224 39,292
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net
of tax (benefit) of ($103), $307, ($148) and
$1,091 (240) 717 (345) 2,547
Net income $ 5,741 $ 30,368 $ 11,879 $ 41,839
L] I I L]
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic 9,382 10,622 9,352 17,714
I I I I
Diluted 9,670 10,895 9,721 17,877
N I I N
Income per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 064 $ 279 $ 131 $ 222
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.03) 0.07 (0.04) 0.14
Net income per share-basic $ 061 $ 286 $ 127 $ 236
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.62 $ 272 $ 1.26 $ 220
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.03) 0.07 (0.04) 0.14
Net income per share-diluted $ 059 $ 279 $ 122 $ 234
I I I I

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE GEO GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 26, 2004 AND DECEMBER 28, 2003
(In thousands except share data)

(UNAUDITED)
September 26, 2004 December 28, 2003
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 84,502 $ 58,679
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,318 and $1,255 88,547 87,184
Deferred income tax asset 11,432 11,839
Other 9,488 10,536
Current assets of discontinued operations 3,779 17,408
Total current assets 197,748 185,646
Restricted cash 3,575 55,794
Property and equipment, net 196,353 201,339
Deferred income tax asset 2,670 4,980
Direct finance lease receivable 39,593 42,379
Other non current assets 17,733 16,976
Other assets of discontinued operations — 176
$ 457,672 $ 507,290
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 19,760 $ 20,667
Accrued payroll and related taxes 18,572 14,293
Accrued expenses 54,332 61,783
Current portion of deferred revenue 1,844 1,811
Current portion of long-term debt and non-recourse debt 5,672 7,107
Current liabilities of discontinued operations 1,481 7,778
Total current liabilities 101,661 113,439
Deferred revenue 4,781 6,197
Other non current liabilities 17,365 18,851
Long-term debt 195,343 239,465
Non-recourse debt 39,593 42,379
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 30,000,000 shares authorized, 9,453,478 and 9,332,552
shares issued and outstanding 95 93
Additional paid-in capital 66,125 64,605
Retained earnings 168,483 156,605
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,894) (2,464)
Treasury stock, 12,000,000 shares (131,880) (131,880)
Total shareholders’ equity 98,929 86,959
$ 457,672 $ 507,290

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE GEO GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE THIRTY-NINE WEEKS ENDED
SEPTEMBER 26, 2004 AND SEPTEMBER 28, 2003
(In thousands)

(UNAUDITED)

Thirty-nine Weeks Ended

September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income from continuing operations $ 12,224 $ 39,292
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities—

Depreciation and amortization 10,371 9,975
Amortization of debt issue costs 229 49
Deferred tax benefit 1,803 (5,091)
Provision for doubtful accounts 731 337
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net of tax (1,248) (2,572)
Tax benefit related to employee stock options 596 327
Gain on sale of UK joint venture — (61,034)
Write off of deferred financing fees 317 1,989
Other non cash charges in assets and liabilities: 103 —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (2,522) (12,550)
Other current assets 373 5,007
Other assets 89 (11,251)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (8,785) 31,098
Accrued payroll and related taxes 4,494 (5,598)
Deferred revenue (1,383) 2,329
Other liabilities 1,036 2,441
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities of continuing operations 18,428 (5,252)
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 6,916 117
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 25,344 (5,135)
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities:
Investments in and advances to affiliates — 929
Capital expenditures (5,797) (6,540)
Decrease in restricted cash 52,000 —
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 250 —
Proceeds from sale of UK joint venture — 80,678
Net cash provided by investing activities 46,453 75,067
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt 10,000 272,130
Payments on debt (57,256) (125,000)
Dividends received from equity affiliate 430 —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 926 701
Debt issuance costs — (4,485)
Repurchase of common stock — (132,000)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (45,900) 11,346
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (667) 3,927
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 25,230 85,205
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period * 62,817 35,240
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ** $ 88,047 $ 120,445
L] L

Supplemental disclosures:

Cash paid for income taxes $ 6,392 $ 32,517
Cash paid for interest $ 18,414 $ 5,920

* Includes cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations of $4,138 and $2,361 for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2004 and
September 28, 2003, respectively.

*ok Includes cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations of $3,545 and $2,008 for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2004 and
September 28, 2003, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE GEO GROUP, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The unaudited consolidated financial statements of The GEO Group, Inc., a Florida corporation (the “Company”), have been prepared in accordance with the
instructions to Form 10-Q and consequently do not include all disclosures required by Form 10-K. Additional information may be obtained by referring to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 28, 2003. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring items)
necessary for a fair presentation of the financial information for the interim periods reported have been made. Results of operations for the thirty-nine weeks
ended September 26, 2004 are not necessarily indicative of the results for the entire fiscal year ending January 2, 2005.

The accounting policies followed for quarterly financial reporting are the same as those disclosed in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included
in the Company’s Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 10, 2004 for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2003, except as
disclosed below. Certain amounts in the prior period have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs totaling $5.9 million are included in other non current assets in the consolidated balance sheets as of September 26, 2004. Debt issuance
costs related to the term loan under the Senior Credit Facility are amortized into expense using the effective interest method. All other debt issuance costs are
amortized into expense on a straight line basis, which is not materially different than the interest method, over the term of the related debt.

Reserves for Insurance Losses

Claims for which the Company is insured arising from its U.S. operations that have an occurrence date on or before October 1, 2002 are insured by The
Wackenhut Corporation, our former parent company, and are fully insured up to an aggregate limit of between $25.0 million and $50.0 million, depending on
the nature of the claim.

With respect to claims for which the Company is insured arising from its U.S. operations that have an occurrence date of October 2, 2002 through September
26, 2004, the Company’s coverage varies depending on the nature of the claim. For claims relating to general liability and automobile liability, the Company
has a deductible of $1.0 million per claim, primary coverage of $5.0 million per claim for general liability and $3.0 million per claim for automobile liability
(up to a limit of $20.0 million for all claims in the aggregate), and excess/umbrella coverage of up to $50.0 million per claim and for all claims in the
aggregate. For claims relating to medical malpractice at the Company’s correctional facilities, the Company has a deductible of $1.0 million per claim and
primary coverage of $5.0 million per claim and for all claims in the aggregate. For claims relating to medical malpractice at its mental health facilities, the
Company has a deductible of $2.0 million per claim and primary coverage of up to $5.0 million per claim and for all claims in the aggregate. The current
professional liability policy for the Company’s mental health facilities does not include tail coverage for prior periods during which the Company was
uninsured for claims relating to medical malpractice at its mental health facilities.

On October 2, 2004, the Company increased its deductible to $3.0 million per claim for claims relating to general liability and automobile liability, and
increased its deductible for workers compensation to $2.0 million per claim. The Company’s excess/umbrella coverage remains at $50.0 million per claim and
for all claims in the aggregate. For claims relating to medical malpractice at its correctional facilities, the Company purchased coverage with a $3.0 million
deductible per claim subject to a policy limit of $5.0 million per occurrence and in the aggregate. For claims relating to medical malpractice at its mental
health facilities, the Company purchased coverage with a $3.0 self-insurance retention for each and every medical incident with no aggregate, subject to a
policy limit of $7.0 million per occurrence and in the aggregate.

For claims relating to workers’ compensation, the Company maintains statutory coverage as determined by state and/or local law. The Company carries no
insurance for claims relating to employment matters. The Company also carry various types of insurance with respect to its operations in South Africa,
Australia and New Zealand.

Because the Company’s insurance policies have high deductible amounts, losses are recorded as reported and a provision is made to cover losses incurred but
not reported. Loss reserves are undiscounted and are computed based on independent actuarial studies. The Company’s management use judgments in
assessing loss estimates that are based on actual claim amounts and loss development
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THE GEO GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

experience considering historical and industry experience. If actual losses related to insurance claims significantly differ from the Company’s estimates, the
Company’s financial condition and results of operations could be materially impacted.

Costs of Acquisition Opportunities

Internal costs associated with a business combination are expensed as incurred. Direct and incremental costs related to successful negotiations where we are
the acquiring company are capitalized as part of the cost of the acquisition. As of September 26, 2004 the Company had approximately $1.2 million dollars of
capitalized costs. Costs associated with unsuccessful negotiations are expensed when it is probable that the acquisition will not occur.

Correction of Income Tax Provision

During the period ended September 26, 2004, the Company adjusted its tax provision to reflect an adjustment to its treatment of certain executive
compensation. During the fiscal years ended 2002, and 2003 along with the period ending June 27, 2004, the Company calculated its tax provision as if it met
the Internal Revenue Service code section 162(m) requirements for its executive bonus plan. During the quarter, the Company discovered that the plan did not
meet certain specific requirements of section 162(m). As a result the Company’s tax provision was understated and an adjustment to increase the tax provision
by $0.8 million was recorded in the period ended September 26, 2004. The Company’s management does not believe the adjustment is material to its trend of
earnings for the periods affected, or that it will be material to its 2004 income.

2. EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

The Company accounts for stock option plans under the intrinsic value method of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, under which no
compensation has been recognized. The Company provides pro forma disclosures of the compensation expense determined under the fair value provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” as amended by FAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure”.

Had compensation cost for these plans been determined based on the fair value at date of grant in accordance with FAS No. 123, the Company’s net income
and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Thirteen Weeks Ended Thirty-nine Weeks Ended
September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003 September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003
Net income:
As reported $5,741 $30,368 $11,879 $41,839
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under
fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects (153) (64) (522) (427)
Pro forma net income $5,588 $30,304 $11,357 $41,412
Basic earnings per share:
As reported $ 0.61 $ 2.86 $ 1.27 $ 236
Pro forma $ 0.60 $ 285 $ 121 $ 234
Diluted earnings per share:
As reported $ 0.59 $ 279 $ 1.22 $ 234
Pro forma $ 0.58 $ 2.78 $ 117 $ 232

For purposes of the pro forma calculations, the fair value of each option is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model,
assuming no expected dividends and the following assumptions:

Stock options granted during the
Thirty-nine Weeks Ended

September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003
Expected volatility factor 48% 49%
Approximate risk free interest rate 3.2% 2.2%
Expected lives (in years) 4.7 4.4
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THE GEO GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Company, through its Australian subsidiary, had a contract with the Department of Immigration, Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs (“DIMIA”) for the
management and operation of Australia’s immigration centers. The contract was not renewed, and effective February 29, 2004, the Company completed the
transition of the contract and exited the management and operation of the DIMIA centers. In accordance with the provisions related to discontinued operations
specified within FAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial
statements and notes reflect the operations of DIMIA as a discontinued operation in all periods presented. The following are the revenues related to DIMIA
for the periods presented (in thousands):

Thirteen Weeks Ended Thirty-nine Weeks Ended
September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003 September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003
Revenues $ 28 $16,070 $5,855 $46,563

4. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The components of the Company’s comprehensive income, net of tax are as follows (in thousands):

Thirteen Weeks Ended Thirty-nine Weeks Ended
September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003 September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003
Net income $5,741 $30,368 $11,879 $41,839

Change in foreign currency

translation, net of income tax benefit

(expense) of $(538), $194, $2,508

and ($3,805), respectively 636 (304) (3,266) 5,951
Minimum pension liability adjustment,

net of income tax (expense) of

($265), ($23), ($44) and ($143),

respectively 313 36 59 223
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative

instruments, net of income tax

(expense) benefit of $203, ($577),

($1,414) and $432, respectively (239) 902 1,777 (676)
Reclassification adjustment for losses

on UK interest rate swaps included

in net income related to the sale of

the UK joint venture — 13,298 — 13,298
Comprehensive income $6,451 $44,300 $10,449 $60,635
I I I I

5. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) were calculated for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2004 and September 28, 2003 as
follows (in thousands except per share data):

Thirteen Weeks Ended Thirty-nine Weeks Ended
September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003 September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003
Net income $5,741 $30,368 $11,879 $41,839
Basic earnings per share:
Weighted average shares outstanding 9,382 10,622 9,352 17,714
I I I I
Per share amount $ 0.61 $ 2.86 $ 1.27 $ 2.36
L I N I
Diluted earnings per share:
Weighted average shares outstanding 9,382 10,622 9,352 17,714
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee and director stock options 288 273 369 163
Weighted average shares assuming dilution 9,670 10,895 9,721 17,877
I I I I
Per share amount $ 0.59 $ 2.79 $ 1.22 $ 234
I I I I
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THE GEO GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

Thirteen Weeks

Options to purchase 379,847 shares of the Company’s common stock, with exercise prices ranging from $20.25 to $26.88 per share and expiration dates
between 2006 and 2014, were outstanding at the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2004, but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because
their effect would be anti-dilutive. At the thirteen weeks ended September 28, 2003, outstanding options to purchase 430,600 shares of the Company’s
common stock, with exercise prices ranging from $18.38 to $26.88 and expiration dates between 2006 and 2009 were outstanding and also excluded from the
computation of diluted EPS because their effect would be anti-dilutive.

Thirty-nine Weeks

Options to purchase 374,847 shares of the Company’s common stock, with exercise prices ranging from $21.50 to $26.88 per share and expiration dates
between 2006 and 2014, were outstanding at the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2004, but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS
because their effect would be anti-dilutive. At the thirty-nine weeks ended September 28, 2003, outstanding options to purchase 986,600 shares of the
Company’s common stock, with exercise prices ranging from $13.75 to $26.88 and expiration dates between 2005 and 2013 were outstanding and also
excluded from the computation of diluted EPS because their effect would be anti-dilutive.

6. LONG-TERM DEBT AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has a Senior Credit Facility (the “Senior Credit Facility”) consisting of a $50.0 million, five-year revolving loan, referred to as the Revolving
Credit Facility, and a $100.0 million, six-year term loan, referred to as the Term Loan Facility. The Revolving Credit Facility contains a $40.0 million sub
limit for the issuance of standby letters of credit. On February 20, 2004, the Company amended the Senior Credit Facility to, among other things, reduce the
interest rates applicable to borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility, obtain flexibility to make certain information technology related capital expenditures
and provide additional time to reinvest the net proceeds from the sale of the Company’s interest in Premier Custodial Group Limited. On June 25, 2004, the
Company used $43.0 million of the net proceeds from the sale of Premier Custodial Group to permanently reduce the Term Loan Facility, and the Company
also wrote off approximately $0.3 million in deferred financing costs related to this payment. At September 26, 2004, there were borrowings of $52.6 million
outstanding under the Term Loan Facility, no amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility, and $31.2 million outstanding in letters of credit under
the Revolving Credit Facility.

Indebtedness under the Revolving Credit Facility portion of the Senior Credit Facility bears interest at the Company’s option at the base rate plus a spread
varying from 0.75% to 1.50% (depending upon a leverage-based pricing grid set forth in the Senior Credit Facility), or at the London inter-bank offered rate
(“LIBOR”) plus a spread, varying from 2.00% to 2.75% (depending upon a leverage-based pricing grid, as defined in the Senior Credit Facility). The Term
Loan Facility bears interest at the Company’s option at the base rate plus a spread of 1.25%, or at LIBOR plus a spread of 2.5%. Borrowings under the Term
Loan Facility currently bear interest at LIBOR plus 2.5%. If an event of default occurs under the Senior Credit Facility (i) all LIBOR rate loans bear interest
at the rate which is 2.0% in excess of the rate then applicable to LIBOR rate loans until the end of the applicable interest period and thereafter at a rate which
is 2.0% in excess of the rate then applicable to base rate loans, and (ii) all base rate loans bear interest at a rate which is 2.0% in excess of the rate then
applicable to base rate loans.

On January 28, 2004, the Company’s universal shelf registration statement on Form S-3 was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
referred to as the SEC. The universal shelf registration statement provides for the offer and sale by the Company, from time to time, on a delayed basis, of up
to $200.0 million aggregate amount of the Company’s common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, warrants, and/or depositary shares. These securities,
which may be offered in one or more offerings and in any combination, will in each case be offered pursuant to a separate prospectus supplement issued at the
time of the particular offering that will describe the specific types, amounts, prices and terms of the offered securities. Unless otherwise described in the
applicable prospectus supplement relating to the offered securities, the Company anticipates using the net proceeds of each offering for general corporate
purposes, including debt repayment, capital expenditures, acquisitions, business expansion, investments in subsidiaries or affiliates, and/or working capital.

Effective September 18, 2003, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements in the aggregate notional amount of $50.0 million. The Company has
designated the swaps as hedges against changes in the fair value of a designated portion of the ten-year $150.0 million, 8 1/4% senior notes, referred to as the
Notes, due to changes in underlying interest rates. Changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps will be recorded in earnings along with related
designated changes in the value of the Notes. The agreements, which have payment and expiration dates and call provisions that coincide with the terms of
the Notes, effectively convert $50.0
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THE GEO GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

million of the Notes into variable rate obligations. Under the agreements, the Company receives a fixed interest rate payment from the financial counterparties
to the agreements equal to 8.25% per year calculated on the notional $50.0 million amount, while the Company makes a variable interest rate payment to the
same counterparties equal to the six-month LIBOR plus a fixed margin of 3.45%, also calculated on the notional $50.0 million amount. The fair value of the
swaps was $0.9 million and $0.7 million as of September 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively and they are included as an adjustment to the
carrying value of the Notes and in other non current assets in the accompanying balance sheets.

The Company’s wholly-owned Australian subsidiary financed the development of a facility with long-term debt obligations, which are non-recourse to the
Company. The term of the non-recourse debt is through 2017 and it bears interest at a variable rate quoted by certain Australian banks plus 140 basis points.
Any obligations or liabilities of the subsidiary are matched by a similar or corresponding commitment from the government of the State of Victoria. In
connection with the non-recourse debt, the subsidiary is a party to an interest rate swap agreement to fix the interest rate on the variable rate non-recourse debt
to 9.7%. The Company has determined that the swap is an effective cash flow hedge and records changes in the value of the swap as a component of other
comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes. The total value of the swap liability as of September 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003 was

$2.7 million and $5.2 million, respectively, and is recorded as a component of other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company’s contract with the California Department of Corrections for the management of the 224-bed McFarland Community Corrections Center
expired in the first quarter of 2004, on December 31, 2003. Even though the Company no longer operates the McFarland facility, the Company will continue
to be responsible for payments on the underlying lease of the facility with Correctional Properties Trust (“CPV”) through 2008, when the lease is scheduled to
expire. The Company is actively pursuing various alternatives for the facility, including finding an alternative correctional use for the facility or subleasing the
facility to agencies of the federal and/or state governments or another private operator. If the Company is unable to find an appropriate correctional use for the
facility or sublease the facility, the Company will be required to record an operating charge related to a portion of the future lease costs with CPV in
accordance with FAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” The remaining lease obligation is approximately

$2.7 million through April 28, 2008.

During 2000, the Company’s management contract at the 276-bed Jena Juvenile Justice Center in Jena, Louisiana was discontinued by the mutual agreement
of the parties. Despite the discontinuation of the management contract, the Company remains responsible for payments on the Company’s underlying lease of
the inactive facility with CPV through 2009. During 2003, the Company incurred an operating charge of $5.0 million to cover its anticipated losses under the
lease for the facility through January 2006, when the Company estimates that an alternative correctional use for the facility may be identified or a sublease for
the facility may be in place, and to provide an estimated discount to sublease the facility to prospective sublessees. The Company has incurred additional
operating charges in prior periods related to lease payments for the facility. The Company is continuing its efforts to find an alternative correctional use or
sublease for the facility. If the Company is unable to sublease or find an alternative correctional use for the facility prior to January 2006, an additional
operating charge will be required. In accordance with FAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”, all terminations
initiated before December 31, 2002, must be accounted for under Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 94-3 “Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity.” The remaining obligation on the Jena lease through the contractual term of 2009,
exclusive of the reserve for losses through early 2006, is approximately $7.0 million.

LEGAL

The Company was defending a wage and hour class action lawsuit filed in California state court by ten current and former employees (Salas et al v. WCC). In
September 2004, the Superior Court of California in Kern County approved a settlement of this lawsuit. As part of the settlement, the Company is required to
make a cash payment of approximately $3.1 million and provide certain non-cash considerations to current California employees who were included in the
lawsuit. The non-cash considerations include a designated number of paid days off according to longevity of employment, modifications to the Company’s
human resources department, and changes in certain operational procedures at the Company’s correctional facilities in California. The settlement
encompasses all current and former employees in California through the approval date of the settlement and constitutes a full and final settlement of all actual
and potential wage and hour claims against the Company in California for the period preceding July 29, 2004. The Company is fully reserved for this
settlement.
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In June 2004, the Company received notice of a third-party claim for property damage incurred during 2001 and 2002 at several detention facilities that the
Company’s Australian subsidiary formerly operated pursuant to its discontinued contract with DIMIA. The claim did not specify the amount of damages the
third-party may be seeking. Although the claim is in the initial stages and the Company is still in the process of fully evaluating its merits, the Company
believes that it has defenses to the allegations underlying the claim and intends to vigorously defend the Company’s rights. While the plaintiff in this case has
not quantified its claim of the damages and the outcome of the matters discussed above cannot be predicted with certainty, based on information known to
date, and management’s preliminary review of the claim, the Company believes that, if settled unfavorably, this matter could have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s financial condition and results of operations. The Company is uninsured for any damages or costs that it may incur as a result of this claim,
including the expenses of defending the claim.

The nature of the Company’s business exposes it to various types of claims or litigation against the Company, including, but not limited to, civil rights claims
relating to conditions of confinement and/or mistreatment, sexual misconduct claims brought by prisoners or detainees, medical malpractice claims, claims
relating to employment matters (including, but not limited to, employment discrimination claims, union grievances and wage and hour claims), property loss
claims, environmental claims, automobile liability claims, contractual claims and claims for personal injury or other damages resulting from contact with the
Company’s facilities, programs, personnel or prisoners, including damages arising from a prisoner’s escape or from a disturbance or riot at a facility. In
addition, the Company’s management contracts generally require the Company to indemnify the governmental agency against any damages to which the
governmental agency may be subject in connection with such claims or litigation. The Company maintains insurance coverage for these types of claims,
except for claims relating to employment matters, for which it carries no insurance. Except as otherwise disclosed above, the Company does not expect the
outcome of any pending claims or legal proceedings to have a material adverse effect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

8. DOMESTIC AND INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

A summary of domestic and international operations is presented below (dollars in thousands):

Thirteen Weeks Ended Thirty-nine Weeks Ended
September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003 September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003
Revenues
U.S. operations $126,699 $122,672 $372,816 $358,500
Australian operations 21,580 19,106 64,740 51,246
Total revenues $148,279 $141,778 $437,556 $409,746
Operating Income (Loss)
U.S. operations $ 11,807 $ 2,240 $ 25,423 $ 17,626
Australian operations 1,211 (141) 4,031 1,511
Total operating income $ 13,018 $ 2,099 $ 29,454 $ 19,137
I I I I
As of
September 26, 2004 December 28, 2003
Long-lived Assets
U.S. operations $189,794 $194,467
Australian operations 6,559 6,872
Total long-lived assets $196,353 $201,339

Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment.

The Company has equity in earnings of affiliates. The Company has 50% owned joint ventures in South Africa (South African Custodial Management Pty.
Limited and South African Custodial Services Pty. Limited). The Company sold its 50% owned joint venture in the United Kingdom (Premier Custodial
Group Limited) on July 2, 2003. These entities and their subsidiaries are accounted for under the equity method in the periods owned.

South African Custodial Management Pty. Limited and South African Custodial Services Pty. Limited commenced operations on their first prison in fiscal
2002. Total equity in undistributed earnings for South African Custodial Management Pty. Limited and South African Custodial Services Pty. Limited before
income taxes, for the thirty-nine weeks ending September 26, 2004 and September 28, 2003 was $2.4 million and $1.7 million, respectively.
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A summary of financial data for the Company’s equity affiliates in South Africa is as follows (in thousands):

Thirty-nine Weeks Ended

September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003

Statement of Operations Data

Revenues $32,611 $27,106
Operating income 9,982 8,664
Net income 1,378 947
Balance Sheet Data

Current assets $18,208 $10,383
Noncurrent assets 63,113 57,675
Current liabilities 5,873 4,949
Noncurrent liabilities 70,398 62,792
Stockholders’ equity 5,050 317

The following table summarizes certain financial information pertaining to the United Kingdom joint venture for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 28,
2003 (in thousands):

Thirty-nine Weeks Ended
September 28, 2003

Statement of Operations Data

Revenues $104,080

Operating loss (2,981)

Net income 3,486
9. BENEFIT PLANS

During the first quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company adopted the interim disclosure provisions of FAS No. 132 (revised 2003), “Employers’ Disclosure about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits, an Amendment of FAS Statements No. 87, 88 and 106 and a Revision of FAS Statement No. 132.” This
statement revises employers’ disclosures about pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans.

The following table summarizes the components of net periodic benefit cost for the Company (in thousands):

Thirteen Weeks Ended Thirty-nine Weeks Ended
September 26,2004  September 28, 2003 September 26, 2004 September 28, 2003
Service cost $ 80 $ 63 $ 232 $ 189
Interest cost 210 192 621 576
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial loss 101 44 303 132
Amortization of prior service cost 270 270 810 810
Net periodic benefit cost $ 661 $ 569 $1,966 $1,707
I I I I

10. RESERVES FOR INSURANCE LOSSES

The Company is subject to worker’s compensation, general liability, auto liability and medical malpractice lawsuits. To mitigate a portion of this risk, the
Company maintains insurance. The Company’s reserves for worker’s compensation, general liability and auto liability are based upon independent actuarial
calculations, which consider historical claims data, demographic information, severity factors and other actuarial assumptions in determining reserve
estimates. Loss reserves are undiscounted and are reviewed annually during the Company’s third quarter, by the Company’s independent actuary. In the
thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2004, the Company reduced its general liability and worker’s compensation insurance reserves $4.2 million pre-tax,
$2.2 million net of tax or $0.23 per diluted share. This reduction is the result of revised actuarial projections related to loss estimates for the initial two years
of our insurance program which was established October 2, 2002. For claims arising on or before October 2, 2002, the first $1.0 million of coverage is
reinsured by Titania, an insurance subsidiary of TWC, our former parent company. The Company experienced significant adverse claims development in
general liability and workers’ compensation in the late 1990’s. Beginning in approximately 1999, the Company made significant operational changes and
began to aggressively manage its risk in a proactive manner. However,
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these changes were not immediately realized in the Company’s loss estimates. These changes have resulted in improved claims experience and loss
development, which the Company is now currently realizing in its actuarial projections. As a result of its adverse experience as an insured under Titania, the
Company previously established its reserves for the new insurance program above the actuary’s estimate in order to provide for potential adverse loss
development. As a result of improving loss trends, the Company’s independent actuary reduced its expected losses for claims arising since October 2, 2002.
The Company has booked its reserve at September 26, 2004 at the actuary’s expected loss. The Company plans to continue to aggressively manage its general
liability and workers’ compensation risk. While management monitors reported claims closely and considers potential outcomes as estimated by its actuaries
when determining its insurance reserves, the complexity of the claims, the extended period of time to settle the claims and the wide range of potential
outcomes complicates the estimation process.

11. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which addressed
consolidation by a business of variable interest entities in which it is the primary beneficiary. In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46 (revised) which
replaced FIN No. 46. The application of FIN 46 (revised) did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash
flows.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 4, 2004, the Company entered into new executive employment agreements with George C. Zoley, its Chairman & CEO, and Wayne H.
Calabrese, its Vice Chairman, President & COO, and amended its Senior Management Incentive Plan (the “Amended Incentive Plan”). The new executive
employment agreements each contain three-year rolling-terms, non-compete and confidentiality provisions and other customary executive employment
agreement terms. Under the agreements and the Amended Incentive Plan, the target amount that Mr. Zoley and Mr. Calabrese may receive as a percentage of
annual salary in the form of their annual incentive bonuses has been increased to 150% and 120%, respectively. The agreements provide that the executives
will be entitled to receive two years’ annual salary plus bonus in the event that they are terminated without cause or resign for good reason.

The amended executive employment agreements were the result of efforts by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Board”). In the
third quarter of 2004, the Board instructed the Compensation Committee to evaluate the compensation arrangements of Mr. Zoley and Mr. Calabrese in an
effort to retain the executives after 2005, when each of them are eligible to retire from the Company and receive the benefits provided under their retirement
agreements. The compensation committee retained separate legal and financial advisors to assist it in its evaluation. The compensation committee also
engaged an independent compensation consultant. The amended executive employment agreements were approved by the Board upon the recommendation of
the Compensation Committee.

The Amended Incentive Plan also increases the target amount that certain other senior executives may receive as a percentage of annual salary in the form of
their annual incentive bonuses.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This report and our earnings press release dated November 4, 2004 contain “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. “Forward-looking” statements are any statements that are not
based on historical information. Statements other than statements of historical facts included in this report, including, without limitation, statements regarding
our future financial position, business strategy, budgets, projected costs and plans and objectives of management for future operations, are “forward-looking”
statements. Forward-looking statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “seek,” “estimate” or “continue” or the negative of such words or variations of such words and similar expressions. These
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, which are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual
outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements and we can give no assurance that such
forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by
the forward-looking statements, or “cautionary statements,” include, but are not limited to:

« our ability to timely build and/or open facilities as planned, profitably manage such facilities and successfully integrate such facilities into our operations
without substantial additional costs;

« the instability of foreign exchange rates, exposing us to currency risks in Australia, New Zealand and South Africa, or other countries in which we may
choose to conduct our business;

¢ an increase in unreimbursed labor rates;

« our ability to expand and diversify our correctional and mental health services;

* our ability to win management contracts for which we have submitted proposals and to retain existing management contracts;

* our ability to raise new project development capital given the often short-term nature of the customers’ commitment to use newly developed facilities;

+ our ability to reactivate our Jena, Louisiana and McFarland facilities, or to sublease or coordinate the sale of the facilities with the owner of the properties,
Correctional Properties Trust (“CPV™);

+ significant charges to expense of deferred costs associated with acquisition opportunities if management determines that one or more of such opportunity is
unlikely to be successfully concluded;

« our ability to accurately project the size and growth of the domestic and international privatized corrections industry;
« our ability to estimate the government’s level of dependency on privatized correctional services;

* our ability to develop long-term earnings visibility;

* our ability to obtain future financing at competitive rates;

* our exposure to rising general insurance costs;

* our exposure to claims for which we are uninsured;

* our exposure to rising inmate medical costs;
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« our ability to maintain occupancy rates at our facilities;
+ our ability to manage costs and expenses relating to ongoing litigation arising from our operations;
+ our ability to accurately estimate on an annual basis, loss reserves related to general liability, workers compensation and automobile liability claims;
« the ability of our government customers to secure budgetary appropriations to fund their payment obligations to us;

+ our ability to effectively internalize information technology related functions and services previously provided to us by The Wackenhut Corporation, our
former parent company; and

+ other factors contained in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), including, but not limited to, those detailed in our annual
report on Form 10-K, our Form 10-Qs and our Form 8-Ks filed with the SEC.

We undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. All
subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us, or persons acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by the
cautionary statements included in this report.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Reference is made to Part II, Item 7 of our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2003, filed with the SEC on March 10, 2004,
for further discussion and analysis of information pertaining to our results of operations, liquidity and capital resources.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
As such, we are required to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions that we believe are reasonable based upon the information available. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. We routinely evaluate our estimates based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that management
believes are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. A summary of our
significant accounting policies is described in Note 2 to our financial statements on Form 10-K for the year ended December 28, 2003.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

We recognize revenue in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101, as amended by SAB No. 104, and related interpretations. Facility
management revenues are recognized as services are provided under facility management contracts with approved government appropriations based on a net
rate per day per inmate or on a fixed monthly rate. Project development and design revenues are recognized as earned on a percentage of completion basis
measured by the percentage of costs incurred to date as compared to estimated total cost for each contract. This method is used because management
considers costs incurred to date to be the best available measure of progress on these contracts. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts and
changes to cost estimates are made in the period in which we determine that such losses and changes are probable. Contract costs include all direct material
and labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance. Changes in job performance, job conditions, and estimated profitability, including
those arising from contract penalty provisions, and final contract settlements may result in revisions to estimated costs and income, and are recognized in the
period in which the revisions are determined.

We extend credit to the governmental agencies we contract with and other parties in the normal course of business as a result of billing and receiving payment
for services thirty to sixty days in arrears. Further, we regularly review outstanding receivables, and provide estimated losses through an allowance for
doubtful accounts. In evaluating the level of established reserves, we make judgments regarding our customers’ ability to make required payments, economic
events and other factors. As the financial condition of these parties change, circumstances develop or additional information becomes available, adjustments
to the allowance for doubtful accounts may be required.
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DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS

Debt issuance costs totaling $5.9 million are included in other non current assets in the consolidated balance sheets as of September 26, 2004. Debt issuance
costs related to the term loan under the Senior Credit Facility are amortized into expense using the effective interest method. All other debt issuance costs are
amortized into expense on a straight line basis, which is not materially different than the interest method, over the term of the related debt.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of September 26, 2004, we had approximately $196.4 million in long-lived property and equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at cost.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the property and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the useful life of the improvement or the term of the lease. We perform ongoing evaluations of the estimated useful
lives of our property and equipment for depreciation purposes. The estimated useful lives are determined and continually evaluated based on the period over
which services are expected to be rendered by the asset. Maintenance and repair items are expensed as incurred.

We review long-lived assets to be held and used for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets
may not be fully recoverable. Determination of recoverability is based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of the asset and
its eventual disposition. Measurement of an impairment loss for long-lived assets that management expects to hold and use is based on the fair value of the
asset. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Management has reviewed our long-
lived assets and determined that there are no events requiring impairment loss recognition for the period ended September 26, 2004. Events that would trigger
an impairment assessment include deterioration of profits for a business segment that has long-lived assets, or when other changes occur which might impair
recovery of long-lived assets.

INCOME TAXES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized as the difference between the book basis and tax basis of net assets. At September 26, 2004, we had net
deferred tax assets of approximately $14.1 million. In providing for deferred taxes, we consider tax regulations of the jurisdictions in which we operate, and
estimates of future taxable income and available tax planning strategies. If tax regulations, operating results or the ability to implement tax-planning strategies
vary, adjustments to the carrying value of deferred tax assets and liabilities may be required. At September 26, 2004, management had not assessed the impact
of “The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004.”

RESERVES FOR INSURANCE LOSSES

Claims for which we are insured arising from our U.S. operations that have an occurrence date on or before October 1, 2002 are insured by The Wackenhut
Corporation, our former parent company, and are fully insured up to an aggregate limit of between $25.0 million and $50.0 million, depending on the nature
of the claim.

With respect to claims for which we are insured arising from our U.S. operations that have an occurrence date of October 2, 2002 through September 26,
2004, our coverage varies depending on the nature of the claim. For claims relating to general liability and automobile liability, we have a deductible of
$1.0 million per claim, primary coverage of $5.0 million per claim for general liability and $3.0 million per claim for automobile liability (up to a limit of
$20.0 million for all claims in the aggregate), and excess/umbrella coverage of up to $50.0 million per claim and for all claims in the aggregate. For claims
relating to medical malpractice at our correctional facilities, we have a deductible of $1.0 million per claim and primary coverage of $5.0 million per claim
and for all
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claims in the aggregate. For claims relating to medical malpractice at our mental health facilities, we have a deductible of $2.0 million per claim and primary
coverage of up to $5.0 million per claim and for all claims in the aggregate. The current professional liability policy for our mental health facilities does not
include tail coverage for prior periods during which we were uninsured for claims relating to medical malpractice at our mental health facilities.

On October 2, 2004 we increased our deductible to $3.0 million per claim for claims relating to general liability and automobile liability, and increased our
deductible for workers compensation to $2.0 million per claim. Our excess/umbrella coverage remains at $50.0 million per claim and for all claims in the
aggregate. For claims relating to medical malpractice at our correctional facilities we purchased coverage with a $3.0 million deductible per claim subject to a
policy limit of $5.0 million per occurrence and in the aggregate. For claims relating to medical malpractice at our mental health facilities we purchased
coverage with a $3.0 self-insurance retention for each and every medical incident with no aggregate, subject to a policy limit of $7.0 million per occurrence
and in the aggregate.

For claims relating to workers’ compensation, we maintain statutory coverage as determined by state and/or local law and as a result, our coverage varies
among the various jurisdictions in which we operate. We carry no insurance for claims relating to employment matters. We also carry various types of
insurance with respect to our operations in South Africa, Australia and New Zealand.

Because our insurance policies have high deductible amounts, losses are recorded as reported and a provision is made to cover losses incurred but not
reported. Loss reserves are undiscounted and are computed based on independent actuarial studies. We use judgments in assessing loss estimates that are
based on actual claim amounts and loss development experience considering historical and industry experience. If actual losses related to insurance claims
significantly differ from our estimates, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially impacted.

COSTS OF ACQUISITION OPPORTUNITIES

Internal costs associated with a business combination are expensed as incurred. Direct and incremental costs related to successful negotiations where we are
the acquiring company are capitalized as part of the cost of the acquisition. As of September 26, 2004 the Company had approximately $1.2 million dollars of
capitalized costs. Costs associated with unsuccessful negotiations are expensed when it is probable that the acquisition will not occur.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Our contract with the California Department of Corrections for the management of the 224-bed McFarland Community Corrections Center expired in the
First Quarter of 2004 on December 31, 2003. Even though we no longer operate the McFarland facility, we will continue to be responsible for payments on
the underlying lease of the facility with CPV through 2008, when the lease is scheduled to expire. We are actively pursuing various alternatives for the
facility, including finding an alternative correctional use for the facility or subleasing the facility to agencies of the federal and/or state governments or
another private operator. If we are unable to find an appropriate correctional use for the facility or sublease the facility, we will be required to record an
operating charge related to a portion of the future lease costs with CPV in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” The remaining lease obligation is approximately $2.7 million through April 28, 2008.

During 2000, our management contract at the 276-bed Jena Juvenile Justice Center in Jena, Louisiana was discontinued by the mutual agreement of the
parties. Despite the discontinuation of the management contract, we remain responsible for payments on the underlying lease of the inactive facility. During
2003, we incurred an operating charge of $5.0 million to cover our anticipated losses under the lease for the facility through January 2006, when we estimate
that an alternative correctional use for the facility may be identified or a sublease for the facility may be in place, and to provide an estimated discount to
sublease the facility to prospective sublessees. We have incurred additional operating charges in prior periods related to lease payments for the facility. We are
continuing our efforts to find an alternative correctional use or sublease for the facility. If we are unable to sublease or find an alternative correctional use for
the facility prior to January 2006, an additional operating charge will be required. The remaining obligation on the Jena lease through the contractual term of
2009, exclusive of the reserve for losses through early 2006, is approximately $7.0 million.

On November 4, 2004, we entered into new executive employment agreements with George C. Zoley, our Chairman & CEO, and Wayne H. Calabrese, our
Vice Chairman, President & COO, and amended our Senior Management Incentive Plan (the “Amended Incentive Plan”). The new executive employment
agreements each contain three-year rolling-terms, non-compete and confidentiality provisions and other customary executive employment agreement terms.
Under the agreements and the Amended Incentive Plan, the target amount that Mr. Zoley and Mr. Calabrese may receive as a percentage of annual salary in
the form of their annual incentive bonuses has been increased to 150% and 120%, respectively. The agreements provide that the executives will be entitled to
receive two years’ annual salary plus bonus in the event that they are terminated without cause or resign for good reason.

The amended executive employment agreements were the result of efforts by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Board”). In the
third quarter of 2004, our Board instructed the Compensation Committee to evaluate the compensation arrangements of Mr. Zoley and Mr. Calabrese in an
effort to retain the executives after 2005, when each of them is eligible to retire and receive the benefits provided under their retirement agreements. The
compensation committee retained separate legal and financial advisors to assist it in its evaluation. The compensation committee also engaged an independent
compensation consultant. The amended executive employment agreements were approved by the Board upon the recommendation of the Compensation
Committee.

The Amended Incentive Plan also increases the target amount that certain other senior executives may receive as a percentage of annual salary in the form of
their annual incentive bonuses.

We were defending a wage and hour class action lawsuit filed in California state court by ten current and former employees (Salas et al v. WCC). In
September 2004, the Superior Court of California in Kern County approved a settlement of this lawsuit. As part of the settlement, we
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are required to make a cash payment of approximately $3.1 million and provide certain non-cash considerations to current California employees who were
included in the lawsuit. The non-cash considerations include a designated number of paid days off according to longevity of employment, modifications to
our human resources department, and changes in certain operational procedures at our correctional facilities in California. The settlement encompasses all of
our current and former employees in California through the approval date of the settlement and constitutes a full and final settlement of all actual and
potential wage and hour claims against us in California for the period preceding July 29, 2004. We are fully reserved for this settlement.

In June 2004, we received notice of a third-party claim for property damage incurred during 2001 and 2002 at several detention facilities that our Australian
subsidiary formerly operated pursuant to our discontinued contract with the Department of Immigration, Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs (“DIMIA”).
The claim did not specify the amount of damages the third-party may be seeking. Although the claim is in the initial stages and we are still in the process of
fully evaluating its merits, we believe that we have defenses to the allegations underlying the claim and intend to vigorously defend our rights. While the
plaintiff in this case has not quantified its claim of the damages and the outcome of the matters discussed above cannot be predicted with certainty, based on
information known to date, and management’s preliminary review of the claim, we believe that, if settled unfavorably, this matter could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. We are uninsured for any damages or costs we may incur as a result of this claim, including
the expenses of defending the claim.

The nature of our business exposes us to various types of claims or litigation against us, including, but not limited to, civil rights claims relating to conditions
of confinement and/or mistreatment, sexual misconduct claims brought by prisoners or detainees, medical malpractice claims, claims relating to employment
matters (including, but not limited to, employment discrimination claims, union grievances and wage and hour claims), property loss claims, environmental
claims, automobile liability claims, contractual claims and claims for personal injury or other damages resulting from contact with our facilities, programs,
personnel or prisoners, including damages arising from a prisoner’s escape or from a disturbance or riot at a facility. In addition, our management contracts
generally require us to indemnify the governmental agency against any damages to which the governmental agency may be subject in connection with such
claims or litigation. We maintain insurance coverage for these types of claims, except for claims relating to employment matters, for which we carry no
insurance. Except as otherwise disclosed above, we do not expect the outcome of any pending claims or legal proceedings to have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the notes to our consolidated financial
statements included in Part I, Item 1, of this report.

The discussion of our operating results from continuing operations below excludes the results of our discontinued operations resulting from the termination of
our management contract with the DIMIA for all periods presented. Through our Australian subsidiary, we had a contract with the DIMIA for the
management and operation of Australia’s immigration centers. The contract was not renewed, and effective February 29, 2004, we completed the transition of
the contract and exited the management and operation of the DIMIA centers.

Comparison of Thirteen Weeks Ended September 26, 2004 and Thirteen Weeks Ended September 28, 2003

Revenues increased by 4.6% to $148.3 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2004 (“Third Quarter 2004”) from $141.8 million in the thirteen
weeks ended September 28, 2003 (“Third Quarter 2003”). The increase in revenues primarily relates to three activities. Revenues increased $5.3 million
related to construction revenue earned during Third Quarter 2004 with minimal related revenue in Third Quarter 2003. Secondly, the opening of new facilities
in 2004 resulted in a $4.4 million increase. Lastly, the strengthening of the Australian dollar in Third Quarter 2004 as compared to Third Quarter 2003
resulted in a $1.5 million increase. Domestic and international revenues also increased due to contractual adjustments for inflation and improved terms
negotiated into a number of contracts. Revenues were negatively offset by $6.5 million in Third Quarter 2004 as compared to Third Quarter 2003 due to the
non renewal in January 2004 of the management contracts for the Willacy State Jail and John R. Lindsey State Jail, and the closure of the McFarland CCF
State Correctional Facility on December 31, 2003.

The number of compensated resident days in domestic facilities increased to 2,620,545 in Third Quarter 2004 from 2,485,798 in Third Quarter 2003. The
average facility occupancy rate in domestic facilities was 98.3% of capacity in Third Quarter 2004 compared to 100.4% in Third Quarter 2003. Compensated
resident days in Australian facilities increased to 250,754 from 240,238 in Third Quarter 2004 as compared to Third Quarter 2003.
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Operating expenses decreased by 4.6% to $121.0 million in Third Quarter 2004 compared to $126.9 million in Third Quarter 2003. Third Quarter 2004
operating expenses include a $4.2 million ($2.2 million net of tax) or $0.23 per diluted share reduction in our general liability, auto liability and worker’s
compensation insurance reserves. This reduction is the result of revised actuarial projections related to loss estimates for the initial two years of our insurance
program which was established October 2, 2002. For claims arising on or before October 2, 2002, the first $1.0 million of coverage is reinsured by Titania, an
insurance subsidiary of The Wackenhut Corporation (“TWC”), our former parent company. We experienced significant adverse claims development in
general liability and workers’ compensation in the late 1990’s. Beginning in approximately 1999 we made significant operational changes and began to
aggressively manage our risk in a proactive manner. However, these changes were not immediately realized in our loss estimates. These changes have
resulted in improved claims experience and loss development, which we are now currently realizing in our actuarial projections. As a result of our adverse
experience as an insured under Titania, we previously established our reserves for the new insurance program above the actuary’s estimate in order to provide
for potential adverse loss development. As a result improving loss trends, our independent actuary reduced its expected losses for claims arising since
October 2, 2002. We have booked our reserve at September 26, 2004 at the actuary’s expected loss.

Additionally, operating expenses were favorably impacted by a downward adjustment in legal reserves of $0.5 million in Third Quarter 2004. Third Quarter
2003 operating expenses reflect an additional provision for operating losses of approximately $5.0 million related to the Company’s inactive facility in Jena,
Louisiana, and approximately $3.0 million related to the transitioning of the DIMIA contract primarily related to liability insurance expenses.

Depreciation and amortization increased by 9.1% to $3.6 million in Third Quarter 2004 compared to $3.3 million in Third Quarter 2003. As a percentage of
revenue, depreciation and amortization increased to 2.4% in Third Quarter 2004 from 2.3% in the comparable period in 2003.

General and administrative expenses increased 11.6% to $10.6 million in Third Quarter 2004 from $9.5 million in Third Quarter 2003. The increase in
general and administrative expenses is primarily attributable to a rise in accounting and legal fees, rent expense and increased headcount. The increase in
headcount is attributable in part to increased personnel retained as a result of the internalization of information technology functions and services previously
outsourced to The Wackenhut Corporation. As a percentage of revenue, general and administrative expenses increased to 7.2% in Third Quarter 2004 from
6.7% in Third Quarter 2003.

Operating income increased to $13.0 million in Third Quarter 2004 from $2.1 million in Third Quarter 2003. As a percentage of revenue, operating income
increased to 8.8% in Third Quarter 2004 from 1.5% in Third Quarter 2003. The increase in operating income is primarily attributable to the factors discussed
above.

Interest income was $2.1 million during Third Quarter 2004 compared to $1.7 million in Third Quarter 2003.
Interest expense was $5.2 million during Third Quarter 2004 compared to $5.6 million in Third Quarter 2003 due to lower borrowings.

Income before income taxes, equity in earnings of affiliates and discontinued operations decreased to $10.0 million in Third Quarter 2004 from $57.3 million
in Third Quarter 2003 primarily due to the gain on the sale of the UK joint venture of $61.0 million in Third Quarter 2003 reduced by write-offs of deferred
financing fees from the extinguishment of debt of $2.0 in Third Quarter 2003. The remainder of the change is due to the factors described above.

Provision for income taxes decreased to $4.6 million in Third Quarter 2004 from $28.2 million in Third Quarter 2003 due to lower taxable income slightly
reduced by a higher effective tax rate in Third Quarter 2004. In addition, during the Third Quarter 2004, we adjusted our tax provision to reflect an adjustment
to our treatment of certain executive compensation. During the fiscal years ended 2002, and 2003 along with the period ending June 27, 2004, we calculated
our tax provision as if it met the Internal Revenue Service code section 162(m) requirements for our executive bonus plan. During the Third Quarter 2004, we
discovered that the plan did not meet certain specific requirements of section 162(m). As a result our tax provision was understated and an adjustment to
increase the tax provision by $0.8 million was recorded in the period ended September 26, 2004. We do not believe the adjustment is material to our trend of
earnings for the periods affected, or that it will be material to our 2004 income.

Equity in earnings of affiliates, net of income tax provision, increased to $0.6 million in Third Quarter 2004 from $0.5 million in Third Quarter 2003.
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Income from continuing operations decreased to $6.0 million in Third Quarter 2004 from $29.7 million in Third Quarter 2003 primarily related to the gain on
the sale of the UK joint venture of $61.0 million in Third Quarter 2003 and other factors described above.

Income from discontinued operations decreased to a loss of $0.2 million in Third Quarter 2004 compared to income from discontinued operations of $0.7
million in Third Quarter 2003. The loss in the Third Quarter 2004 relates to close out costs of the DIMIA contract with no associated services.

Net income decreased to $5.7 million in Third Quarter 2004 from $30.4 million in Third Quarter 2003, primarily related to the gain on the sale of the UK
joint venture of $61.0 million in Third Quarter 2003 and other factors described above.

Comparison of Thirty-Nine Weeks Ended September 26, 2004 and Thirty-nine Weeks Ended September 28, 2003

Revenues increased by 6.8% to $437.6 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2004 (“Nine Months 2004”) from $409.7 million in the thirty-
nine weeks ended September 28, 2003 (“Nine Months 2003”). The increase in revenues primarily relates to four activities. Australian revenues increased
approximately $13.5 million, $8.2 million of which was due to the strengthening of the Australian dollar and $5.3 million of which was due to higher
occupancy rates and contractual adjustments for inflation. Revenues increased $8.8 million related to construction revenue earned during the Nine Months
2004 with minimal related construction revenue in the Nine Months 2003. The opening of the Lawrenceville Correctional Facility at the end of March 2003
accounts for $4.5 million of the increase. Finally, the opening of new facilities resulted in an $11.3 million increase. Domestic and international revenues also
increased due to contractual adjustments for inflation, slightly higher occupancy rates and improved terms negotiated into a number of contracts. These
increases were offset by $18.4 million due to the non renewal in January 2004 of the management contracts for the Willacy State Jail and John R. Lindsey
State Jail, and the closure of the McFarland CCF State Correctional Facility on December 31, 2003.

The number of compensated resident days in domestic facilities increased to 7,621,330 in Nine Months 2004 from 7,229,433 in Nine Months 2003. The
average facility occupancy rate in domestic facilities was 99.3% and 99.5% of capacity in Nine Months 2004 and Nine Months 2003, respectively.
Compensated resident days in Australian facilities decreased to 735,458 from 668,592 for the comparable periods.

Operating expenses increased by 3.7% to $365.1 million in Nine Months 2004 compared to $352.1 million in Nine Months 2003. Nine Months 2004
operating expenses include a $4.2 million ($2.2 million net of tax) or $0.23 per diluted share reduction in our general liability, auto liability and worker’s
compensation insurance reserves. This reduction is the result of revised actuarial projections related to loss estimates for the initial two years of our insurance
program which was established October 2, 2002. For claims arising on or before October 2, 2002, the first $1.0 million of coverage is reinsured by Titania, an
insurance subsidiary of The Wackenhut Corporation (“TWC”), our former parent company. We experienced significant adverse claims development in
general liability and workers’ compensation in the late 1990’s. Beginning in approximately 1999 we made significant operational changes and began to
aggressively manage our risk in a proactive manner. However, these changes were not immediately realized in our loss estimates. These changes have
resulted in improved claims experience and loss development, which we are now currently realizing in our actuarial projections. As a result of our adverse
experience as an insured under Titania, we previously established our reserves for the new insurance program above the actuary’s estimate in order to provide
for potential adverse loss development. As a result of improving loss trends, our independent actuary reduced its expected losses for claims arising since
October 2, 2002. We have booked our reserve at September 26, 2004 at the actuary’s expected loss.

Nine Months 2003 operating expenses reflect an additional provision for operating losses of approximately $5.0 million related to the Company’s inactive
facility in Jena, Louisiana, and approximately $3.0 million related to the transitioning of the DIMIA contract primarily related to liability insurance expenses.
As a percentage of revenue, operating expenses decreased to 83.4% in Nine Months 2004 from 85.9% in the comparable period in 2003.

Depreciation and amortization increased by 4.0% to $10.4 million in Nine Months 2004 compared to $10.0 million in Nine Months 2003. As a percentage of
revenue, depreciation and amortization remained constant at 2.4% in Nine Months 2004 and in the comparable period in 2003.

General and administrative expenses increased 14.0% to $32.6 million in Nine Months 2004 from $28.6 million in Nine Months 2003. As a percentage of
revenue, general and administrative expenses increased to 7.5% in Nine Months 2004 from 7.0% in Nine Months 2003. The increase in general and
administrative expenses is primarily attributable to a rise in accounting and legal fees, rent expense,
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travel costs and increased headcount. The increase in headcount is attributable in part to increased personnel retained as a result of the internalization of
information technology functions and services previously outsourced to The Wackenhut Corporation.

Operating income increased to $29.5 million in Nine Months 2004 from $19.1 million in Nine Months 2003.

Interest income was $6.9 million during Nine Months 2004 compared to $4.2 million in Nine Months 2003. This is due to an increase in invested cash
balances in our International operations, and an interest rate swap agreement that was entered into September 2003 for our domestic operations.

Interest expense was $16.7 million during Nine Months 2004 compared to $11.6 million in Nine Months 2003 primarily due to overall increased debt service
resulting from interest expense associated with the Notes reduced by borrowings under our Senior Credit Facility.

Deferred financing fees of $0.3 million were written off in the Nine Months 2004 in connection with the $43.0 million payment related to the Senior Credit
Facility. The extinguishment of debt resulted in write-offs of deferred financing fees of $2.0 million in the Nine Months 2003.

The sale of the UK joint venture resulted in a gain of $61.0 million in the Nine Months 2003.

Income before income taxes, equity in earnings of affiliates and discontinued operations decreased to $19.4 million in Nine Months 2004 as compared to
$70.8 million in Nine Months 2003 due to the factors described above.

Provision for income taxes decreased to $8.4 million in Nine Months 2004 as compared to $34.1 million in Nine Months 2003 due to lower taxable income
offset slightly by a higher effective tax rate in Nine Months 2004. In addition, in Nine Months 2004, we adjusted our tax provision to reflect an adjustment to
our treatment of certain executive compensation. During the fiscal years ended 2002, and 2003 along with the period ending June 27, 2004, we calculated our
tax provision as if it met the Internal Revenue Service code section 162(m) requirements for our executive bonus plan. During the Nine Months 2004, we
discovered that the plan did not meet certain specific requirements of section 162(m). As a result our tax provision was understated and an adjustment to
increase the tax provision by $0.8 million was recorded in the period ended September 26, 2004. We do not believe the adjustment is material to our trend of
earnings for the periods affected, or that it will be material to our 2004 income.

Equity in earnings of affiliates, net of income tax provision, decreased to $1.2 million in Nine Months 2004 as compared to $2.6 million in Nine Months 2003
due to our sale of our interest in Premier Custodial Group Limited, our United Kingdom joint venture in July 2003.

Income from continuing operations decreased to $12.2 million in Nine Months 2004 from $39.3 million in Nine Months 2003 as a result of the factors
described above.

Income from discontinued operations decreased to a loss of $0.3 million in Nine Months 2004 as compared to income from discontinued operations of
$2.5 million in Nine Months 2003 due to close out costs related to the transition of the DIMIA contract on February 29, 2004.

Net income decreased to $11.9 million in Nine Months 2004 from $41.8 million in Nine Months 2003, also as a result of the factors described above.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash on hand, cash flow from operations and borrowings under the $50.0 million revolving portion of our Senior Credit
Facility. Management expects that ongoing requirements for debt service, working capital and capital expenditures will be funded from these sources. As of
September 26, 2004, we had cash and cash equivalents of $84.5 million and $18.8 million available for borrowing under the revolving portion of our Senior
Credit Facility.

Senior Credit Facility

The Senior Credit Facility consists of a $50.0 million, five-year revolving loan, referred to as the Revolving Credit Facility, and a $100.0 million, six-year
term loan, referred to as the Term Loan Facility. The Revolving Credit Facility contains a $40.0 million sub
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limit for the issuance of standby letters of credit. On February 20, 2004, we amended the Senior Credit Facility to, among other things, reduce the interest
rates applicable to borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility, obtain flexibility to make certain information technology related capital expenditures and
provide additional time to reinvest the net proceeds from the sale of our interest in Premier Custodial Group Limited. On June 25, 2004, we used $43.0
million of the net proceeds from the sale of Premier Custodial Group to permanently reduce the Term Loan Facility, and we wrote off approximately $0.3
million in deferred financing costs related to the repayment. At September 26, 2004, there were borrowings of $52.6 million outstanding under the Term Loan
Facility, no amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility, and $31.2 million outstanding in letters of credit under the Revolving Credit Facility.

All of the obligations under the Senior Credit Facility are unconditionally guaranteed by each of our existing material domestic subsidiaries. The Senior
Credit Facility and the related guarantees are secured by substantially all of our present and future tangible and intangible assets and all present and future
tangible and intangible assets of each guarantor, including but not limited to (i) a first-priority pledge of all of the outstanding capital stock owned by us and
each guarantor, and (ii) perfected first-priority security interests in all of our present and future tangible and intangible assets and the present and future
tangible and intangible assets of each guarantor.

Indebtedness under the Revolving Credit Facility portion of the Senior Credit Facility bears interest at our option at the base rate plus a spread varying from
0.75% to 1.50% (depending upon a leverage-based pricing grid set forth in the Senior Credit Facility), or at the London inter-bank offered rate (“LIBOR”)
plus a spread, varying from 2.00% to 2.75% (depending upon a leverage-based pricing grid, as defined in the Senior Credit Facility). The Term Loan Facility
bears interest at our option at the base rate plus a spread of 1.25%, or at LIBOR plus a spread of 2.5%. Borrowings under the Term Loan Facility currently
bear interest at LIBOR plus 2.5%. If an event of default occurs under the Senior Credit Facility (i) all LIBOR rate loans bear interest at the rate which is 2.0%
in excess of the rate then applicable to LIBOR rate loans until the end of the applicable interest period and thereafter at a rate which is 2.0% in excess of the
rate then applicable to base rate loans, and (ii) all base rate loans bear interest at a rate which is 2.0% in excess of the rate then applicable to base rate loans.

The Senior Credit Facility contains financial covenants which require us to maintain the following ratios, as computed at the end of each fiscal quarter for the
immediately preceding four quarter-period: a total leverage ratio equal to or less than 2.75 to 1.00 for the Third Quarter 2004, which reduces thereafter in 0.25
increments to 2.50 to 1.00 on July 2, 2006 and thereafter; a senior secured leverage ratio equal to or less than 1.75 to 1.00 through September 25, 2004, which
reduces thereafter to 1.50 to 1.00; and a fixed charge coverage ratio equal to or greater than 1.10 to 1.00. In addition, the Senior Credit Facility prohibits us
from making capital expenditures greater than $10.0 million in the aggregate during any fiscal year, provided that to the extent that our capital expenditures
during any fiscal year are less than the $10.0 million limit, such amount will be added to the maximum amount of capital expenditures that we can make in
the following year and further provided that certain information technology related upgrades made prior to the end of 2005 will not count against the annual
limit on capital expenditures.

The Senior Credit Facility also requires us to maintain a minimum net worth, as computed at the end of each fiscal quarter for the immediately preceding four
quarter-period, equal to $140.0 million, plus the amount of the net gain from the sale of our interest in Premier Custodial Group Limited, our United Kingdom
joint venture, which is approximately $32.7 million, minus the $132.0 million we used to complete the share purchase from Group 4 Falck, plus 50% of our
consolidated net income earned during each full fiscal quarter ending after the date of the Senior Credit Facility, plus 50% of the aggregate increases in our
consolidated shareholders’ equity that are attributable to the issuance and sale of equity interests by us or any of our restricted subsidiaries (excluding
intercompany issuances).

The Senior Credit Facility contains certain customary representations and warranties, and certain customary covenants that restrict our ability to, among other
things (i) create, incur or assume any indebtedness, (ii) incur liens, (iii) make loans and investments, (iv) engage in mergers, acquisitions and asset sales,

(v) sell our assets, (vi) make certain restricted payments, including declaring any cash dividends or redeem or repurchase capital stock, except as otherwise
permitted, (vii) issue, sell or otherwise dispose of our capital stock, (viii) transact with affiliates, (ix) make changes to our accounting treatment, (x) amend or
modify the terms of any subordinated indebtedness (including the Notes), (xi) enter into debt agreements that contain negative pledges on our assets or
covenants more restrictive than contained in the Senior Credit Facility, (xii) alter the business we conduct, and (xiii) materially impair our lenders’ security
interests in the collateral for our loans. The covenants in the Senior Credit Facility can substantially restrict our business operations. We believe that we were
in compliance with the covenants of the Senior Credit Facility as of September 26, 2004.

Events of default under the Senior Credit Facility include, but are not limited to, (i) our failure to pay principal or interest when due, (ii) our material breach
of any representations or warranty, (iii) covenant defaults, (iv) bankruptcy, (v) cross default to certain other
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indebtedness, (vi) unsatisfied final judgments over a threshold to be determined, (vii) material environmental claims which are asserted against us, and (viii) a
change of control.

Senior 8 1/4% Notes

In 2003 we issued $150.0 million aggregate principal amount ten-year 8 1/4% senior notes, referred to as the Notes. The Notes are general, unsecured, senior
obligations. Interest is payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 at 8.25%. The Notes are governed by the terms of an Indenture, dated July 9, 2003,
between us and the Bank of New York, as trustee, referred to as the Indenture. Under the terms of the Indenture, at any time on or prior to July 15, 2006, we
may redeem up to 35% of the Notes with the proceeds from equity offerings at 108.25% of the principal amount to be redeemed plus the payment of accrued
and unpaid interest, and any applicable liquidated damages. Additionally, after July 15, 2008, we may redeem, at our option, all or a portion of the Notes plus
accrued and unpaid interest at various redemption prices ranging from 104.125% to 100.000% of the principal amount to be redeemed, depending on when
the redemption occurs. The Indenture contains covenants that limit our ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends or distributions on our common
stock, repurchase our common stock, or prepay subordinated indebtedness. The Indenture also limits our ability to issue preferred stock, make certain types of
investments, merge or consolidate with another company, guarantee other indebtedness, create liens and transfer and sell assets. We believe that we were in
compliance with all of the covenants of the Indenture governing the Notes as of September 26, 2004. The Notes were registered under the Securities Act of
1933 pursuant to an exchange offer which was completed in December 2003.

The covenants governing the Notes and our Senior Credit Facility, including the covenants described above, impose significant operating and financial
restrictions which may substantially restrict, and materially adversely affect, our ability to operate our business.

At September 26, 2004, we also had outstanding ten letters of guarantee totaling approximately $6.4 million under separate international facilities. We do not
have any off balance sheet arrangements.

Cash and cash equivalents as of September 26, 2004 were $84.5 million, an increase of $25.8 million from December 28, 2003.

Cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations amounted to $18.4 million in the Nine Months 2004 versus cash used by operating activities of
continuing operations of $5.3 million in the Nine Months 2003.

Cash provided by investing activities amounted to $46.5 million in the Nine Months 2004 compared to cash provided by investing activities of $75.1 million
in the Nine Months 2003. In the Nine Months 2004 there was a change in the restricted cash balance of $52 million due to the payment of $43 million of the
term loan portion of the Senior Credit Facility with the net proceeds of the sale of Premier Custodial Group. This payment satisfied the restriction on cash as a
result of this agreement and the remainder was reclassified to cash. In the Nine Months 2003 there was $80.7 million received from the sale of the UK joint
venture.

Cash used in financing activities in the Nine Months 2004 amounted to $45.9 million compared to cash provided by financing activities of $11.3 million in
the Nine Months 2003. Cash used in financing activities in the Nine Months 2004 reflect payments of $10.0 million on borrowings under the Revolving
Credit Facility, $3.2 million in scheduled payments on the Term Loan Facility, and a one-time $43.0 million payment on the Term Loan Facility from the net
proceeds from the sale of our interest in Premier Custodial Group. The $10.0 proceeds from debt reflect borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility in the
Nine Months 2004.

Effective September 18, 2003, we entered into interest rate swap agreements in the aggregate notional amount of $50.0 million. We have designated the
swaps as hedges against changes in the fair value of a designated portion of the Notes due to changes in underlying interest rates. Changes in the fair value of
the interest rate swaps will be recorded in earnings along with related designated changes in the value of the Notes. The agreements, which have payment and
expiration dates and call provisions that coincide with the terms of the Notes, effectively convert $50.0 million of the Notes into variable rate obligations.
Under the agreements, we receive a fixed interest rate payment from the financial counterparties to the agreements equal to 8.25% per year calculated on the
notional $50.0 million amount, while we make a variable interest rate payment to the same counterparties equal to the six-month LIBOR plus a fixed margin
of 3.45%, also calculated on the notional $50.0 million amount. The fair value of the swaps was $0.9 million and $0.7 million as of September 26, 2004 and
December 28, 2003, respectively and is included as an adjustment to the carrying value of the Notes and in other non current assets in the accompanying
balance sheets.

Our wholly-owned Australian subsidiary financed the development of a facility with long-term debt obligations, which are non-recourse to us. The term of
the non-recourse debt is through 2017 and it bears interest at a variable rate quoted by certain Australian
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banks plus 140 basis points. Any obligations or liabilities of the subsidiary are matched by a similar or corresponding commitment from the government of
the State of Victoria. In connection with the non-recourse debt, the subsidiary is a party to an interest rate swap agreement to fix the interest rate on the
variable rate non-recourse debt to 9.7%. We have determined that the swap is an effective cash flow hedge and we record changes in the value of the swap as
a component of other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes. The total value of the swap liability as of September 26, 2004 and December 28,
2003 was $2.7 million and $5.2 million, respectively and is recorded as a component of other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Current cash requirements consist of amounts needed for working capital, capital expenditures and supply purchases and investments in joint ventures. Some
of our management contracts require us to make substantial initial expenditures of cash in connection with opening or renovating a facility. The initial
expenditures subsequently are fully or partially recoverable as pass-through costs or are billable as a component of the per diem rates or monthly fixed fees to
the contracting agency over the original term of the contract. However, we cannot assure you that any of these expenditures would, if made, be recovered.
Based on current estimates of our capital needs, our management expects that capital expenditures will not exceed $3 million during the remainder of the
fiscal year, and will be funded from cash from operations.

Our management believes that cash on hand, cash flows from operations and available lines of credit will be adequate to support currently planned business
expansion and various obligations incurred in the operation of our business, both on a near and long-term basis.

Our access to capital and ability to compete for future capital-intensive projects will be dependent upon, among other things, our ability to meet certain
financial covenants in the Indenture governing the Notes and in our Senior Credit Facility. A substantial decline in our financial performance as a result of an
increase in operational expenses relative to revenue could limit our access to capital and have a material adverse affect on our liquidity and capital resources
and, as a result, on our financial condition and results of operations.

Recent Accounting Developments

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which addressed
consolidation by a business of variable interest entities in which it is the primary beneficiary. In December 2003 the FASB issued FIN No. 46 (revised) which
replaced FIN No. 46. The application of FIN 46 (revised) did not have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risks related to interest rate swap agreements. Effective September 18, 2003, we entered into interest rate swap agreements in the
aggregate notional amount of $50.0 million. We have designated the swaps as hedges against changes in the fair value of a designated portion of the Notes
due to changes in underlying interest rates. Changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps will be recorded in earnings along with related designated
changes in the value of the Notes. The agreements, which have payment and expiration dates and call provisions that coincide with the terms of the Notes,
effectively convert $50.0 million of the Notes into variable rate obligations. Under the agreements, we receive a fixed interest rate payment from the financial
counterparties to the agreements equal to 8.25% per year calculated on the notional $50.0 million amount, while we make a variable interest rate payment to
the same counterparties equal to the six-month LIBOR plus a fixed margin of 3.45%, also calculated on the notional $50.0 million amount. For every one
percent increase in the interest rate applicable to the $50.0 million swap agreements on the Notes, our total annual interest expense will increase by

$0.5 million.

We are also exposed to market risks related to changes in interest rates with respect to our Senior Credit Facility. Monthly payments under the Senior Credit
Facility are indexed to a variable interest rate. Based on borrowings outstanding under the Senior Credit Facility of $52.6 million as of September 26, 2004,
for every one percent increase in the interest rate applicable to the Senior Credit Facility, our total annual interest expense would increase by approximately
$0.5 million.

We are exposed to market risks related to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Australian dollar and the South
African rand currency exchange rates. Based upon our foreign currency exchange rate exposure at September 26, 2004, every 10 percent change in historical
currency rates would have approximately a $3.1 million effect on our financial position and approximately a $0.7 million impact on our results of operations
over the next fiscal year.
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We have entered into certain interest rate swap arrangements fixing the interest rate on our Australian non-recourse debt to 9.7%. The difference between the
floating rate and the swap rate on these instruments is recognized in interest expense within the respective entity. Because the interest rates with respect to
these instruments are fixed, a hypothetical 100 basis point change in the current interest rate would not have a material impact on our financial statements.

Additionally, we invest our cash in a variety of short-term financial instruments. These instruments generally consist of highly liquid investments with
original maturities at the date of purchase of three months or less. While these instruments are subject to interest rate risk, a hypothetical 100 basis point
increase or decrease in market interest rates would not have a material impact on our financial statements.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as
of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of
the end of such period, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective in timely alerting them to material information relating to us (and our
consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in our periodic SEC filings.

(b) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Act) during the period to which this report relates that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We were defending a wage and hour class action lawsuit filed in California state court by ten current and former employees (Salas et al v. WCC). In
September 2004, the Superior Court of California in Kern County approved a settlement of this lawsuit. As part of the settlement, we are required to make a
cash payment of approximately $3.1 million and provide certain non-cash considerations to current California employees who were included in the lawsuit.
The non-cash considerations include a designated number of paid days off according to longevity of employment, modifications to our human resources
department, and changes in certain operational procedures at our correctional facilities in California. The settlement encompasses all of our current and
former employees in California through the approval date of the settlement and constitutes a full and final settlement of all actual and potential wage and hour
claims against us in California for the period preceding July 29, 2004. We are fully reserved for this settlement.

In June 2004, we received notice of a third-party claim for property damage incurred during 2001 and 2002 at several detention facilities that our Australian
subsidiary formerly operated pursuant to our discontinued contract with DIMIA. The claim did not specify the amount of damages the third-party may be
seeking. Although the claim is in the initial stages and we are still in the process of fully evaluating its merits, we believe that we have defenses to the
allegations underlying the claim and intend to vigorously defend our rights. While the plaintiff in this case has not quantified its claim of the damages and the
outcome of the matters discussed above cannot be predicted with certainty, based on information known to date, and management’s preliminary review of the
claim, we believe that, if settled unfavorably, this matter could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. We are
uninsured for any damages or costs we may incur as a result of this claim, including the expenses of defending the claim.

The nature of our business exposes us to various types of claims or litigation against us, including, but not limited to, civil rights claims relating to conditions
of confinement and/or mistreatment, sexual misconduct claims brought by prisoners or detainees, medical malpractice claims, claims relating to employment
matters (including, but not limited to, employment discrimination claims, union grievances and wage and hour claims), property loss claims, environmental
claims, automobile liability claims, contractual claims and claims for personal injury or other damages resulting from contact with our facilities, programs,
personnel or prisoners, including damages arising from a prisoner’s escape or from a disturbance or riot at a facility. In addition, our management contracts
generally require us to indemnify the governmental agency against any damages to which the governmental agency may be subject in connection with such
claims or litigation. We maintain insurance coverage for these types of claims, except for claims relating to employment matters, for which we carry no
insurance. Except as otherwise disclosed above, we do not expect the outcome of any pending claims or legal proceedings to have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Not applicable.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

Not applicable.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

On November 4, 2004, we entered into new executive employment agreements with George C. Zoley, our Chairman & CEO, and Wayne H. Calabrese, our
Vice Chairman, President & COO, and amended our Senior Management Incentive Plan (the “Amended Incentive Plan”). The new executive employment
agreements each contain three-year rolling-terms, non-compete and confidentiality provisions and other customary executive employment agreement terms.
Under the agreements and the Amended Incentive Plan, the target amount that Mr. Zoley and Mr. Calabrese may receive as a percentage of annual salary in
the form of their annual incentive bonuses has been increased to 150% and 120%, respectively. The agreements provide that the executives will be entitled to
receive two years’ annual salary plus bonus in the event that they are terminated without cause or resign for good reason.

The amended executive employment agreements were the result of efforts by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Board”). In the
third quarter of 2004, our Board instructed the Compensation Committee to evaluate the compensation arrangements of Mr. Zoley and Mr. Calabrese in an
effort to retain the executives after 2005, when each of them is eligible to retire and receive the benefits provided under their retirement agreements. The
compensation committee retained separate legal and financial advisors to assist it in its evaluation. The compensation committee also engaged an independent
compensation consultant. The amended executive employment agreements were approved by the Board upon the recommendation of the Compensation
Committee.

The Amended Incentive Plan also increases the target amount that certain other senior executives may receive as a percentage of annual salary in the form of
their annual incentive bonuses.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) Exhibits -

10.1 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated November 4, 2004, between The GEO Group, Inc. and George C. Zoley.
10.2 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated November 4, 2004, between The GEO Group, Inc. and Wayne H. Calabrese.
10.3 Senior Management Incentive Plan, dated November November 4, 2004.

31.1 SECTION 302 CEO Certification.

31.2 SECTION 302 CFO Certification.

321 SECTION 906 CEO Certification.

32.2 SECTION 906 CFO Certification.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K — We filed a Form 8-K, Item 12, on August 11, 2004.
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THE GEO GROUP, INC.
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

THE GEO GROUP, INC.

Date: November 5, 2004 /s/ John G. O'Rourke

John G. O'Rourke
Senior Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1

AMENDED AND RESTATED
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this
"Agreement") is entered into effective the 4th day of November 2004 by and
between The GEO Group, Inc. (the "Company") and George C. Zoley (the "Executive"
and, together with the Company, the "Parties").

WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company have previously entered into an
Executive Employment Agreement, dated March 7, 2002 (the "Prior Employment
Agreement"), and an Executive Retirement Agreement, dated March 7, 2002 (as
amended by the Amended Executive Retirement Agreement, dated January 17, 2003,
the "Amended Retirement Agreement"), which set forth the Parties' rights and
obligations with respect to the Executive's employment with the Company and
retirement benefits, respectively;

WHEREAS, the Executive is scheduled to turn age 55 on February 7, 2005,
upon which date he is eligible to retire from the Company and receive the
benefits provided for under the terms of the Amended Retirement Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company wish to amend and restate the
Prior Employment Agreement to facilitate the continued employment of the
Executive as Chairman & CEO of the Company under restructured terms and
conditions that will provide the Executive with additional incentive to remain
in the employ of the Company by, among other things, increasing the amount of
the Annual Incentive Bonus (as defined below) which the Executive is eligible to
receive during the term of his employment with the Company; and

WHEREAS, the terms of this Agreement have been reviewed and approved by
the members of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company (the "Board") and the independent directors of the Board, respectively,
with the assistance of their own separate legal, financial and other advisers;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained herein, and for other valuable consideration the receipt and adequacy
of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

1. POSITION AND DUTIES. The Company hereby agrees to continue to employ
the Executive and the Executive hereby accepts continued employment and
agrees to continue to serve as Chairman & CEO of the Company. The
Executive will perform all duties and responsibilities and will have
all authority inherent in the position of Chairman & CEO.

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT AND EMPLOYMENT. The term of the Executive's
employment under this Agreement will be for an initial period of three
(3) years, beginning on the effective date of this Agreement, and
terminating three years thereafter. The term of employment under this
Agreement will be automatically extended by one day every day such that
it has a continuous "rolling" three-year term, unless otherwise
terminated pursuant to Section 7 of this Agreement.



DEFINITIONS.

A. CAUSE. For purposes of this Agreement, "Cause" for the
termination of the Executive's employment hereunder shall be
deemed to exist if, in the reasonable judgment of the
Company's Board of Directors: (i) the Employee commits fraud,
theft or embezzlement against the Company; (ii) the Employee
commits a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude; (iii)
the Employee breaches any non-competition, confidentiality or
non-solicitation agreement with the Company or any subsidiary
or affiliate thereof; (iv) the Employee breaches any of the
terms of this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within
30 days after the receipt of written notice of such breach
from the Company; or (v) the Employee engages in gross
negligence or willful misconduct that causes harm to the
business and operations of the Company or a subsidiary or
affiliate thereof.

B. GOOD REASON. Termination by the Executive of his employment
for "Good Reason" shall mean a termination by the Executive
upon:

(i) A material reduction in the Executive's title or
responsibilities;

(ii) Any reduction in the Executive's Annual Base Salary (as
defined below) or Annual Incentive Bonus;

(iii) A diminution in the Executive's eligibility to
participate in bonus, stock options, incentive awards and
other compensation plans or a diminution in the Executive's
Benefits (as defined below); or

(iv) A change in the location of the Executive's principal
place of employment by the Company of more than 50 miles from
the location at which he was principally employed.

COMPENSATION.

A. ANNUAL BASE SALARY. Executive shall be paid his current annual
base salary of $750,000.00 for the remainder of calendar year
2004 (as such may be amended from time to time, the "Annual
Base Salary"). The Company shall increase the Annual Base
Salary paid to the Executive by applying a cost of living
increase to be determined by the Board of Directors, such
increase to be made effective the 1st day of January of each
year of the employment term. However, under no circumstances
shall the cost of living increase be less than 5% per annum.
The Annual Base Salary shall be payable at such regular times
and intervals as the Company customarily pays its Executives
from time to time.

B. ANNUAL INCENTIVE BONUS. For each fiscal year of employment
during which the Company employs the Executive, the Executive
shall be entitled to receive a target annual incentive bonus
in accordance with the Senior Management Incentive Plan
established by the Board of Directors for determining the
Executive's annual bonus (the "Annual Incentive Bonus"), such
Annual Incentive Bonus to be paid effective the 1st day of
January of each year of the employment term with respect to
the immediately preceding year.



EXECUTIVE BENEFITS. The Executive will be entitled to four weeks of
vacation per fiscal year. The Executive, the Executive's spouse, and
gualifying members of the Executive's family will be eligible for and
will participate in, without action by the Board of Directors of the
Company or any committee thereof, any benefits and perquisites
available to executive officers of the Company, including any group
health, dental, life insurance, disability, or other form of Executive
benefit plan or program of the Company now existing or that may be
later adopted by the Company (collectively, the "Executive Benefits").

DEATH OR DISABILITY. The Executive's employment will terminate
immediately upon the Executive's death. If the Executive becomes
physically or mentally disabled so as to become unable for a period of
more than five consecutive months or for shorter periods aggregating at
least five months during any twelve month period to perform the
Executive's duties hereunder on a substantially full-time basis, the
Executive's employment will terminate as of the end of such five-month
or twelve-month period and this shall be considered a "disability"
under this Agreement. Such termination shall not affect the Executive's
benefits under the Company's disability insurance program, if any, then
in effect.

TERMINATION. Either the Executive or the Company may terminate the
Executive's employment under this Agreement for any reason upon not
less than thirty (30) days written notice.

A. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT OTHER THAN BY RESIGNATION OF
EXECUTIVE OR TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. Upon the termination of
the Executive's employment under this Agreement for any reason
(including termination of employment by the Executive for Good
Reason, termination of employment by the Company without
Cause, or the death or disability of the Executive) other than
by the resignation of Executive without Good Reason or a
termination by the Company for Cause, the following shall

apply:

(1) TERMINATION PAYMENT. The Executive shall be entitled to
and paid a termination payment (the "Termination Payment")
equal to two years' Annual Base Salary and target level Annual
Incentive Bonus as set forth in Section 4 based upon the then
current salary level, together with any Equalization Payment
required to be paid in accordance with Section 7(A)(iv). The
Termination Payment and the Equalization Payment shall be made
within 10 days of any termination pursuant to this Section
7(A).

(ii) TERMINATION BENEFITS. The Company shall continue to
provide the Executive (and if applicable, his beneficiaries)
with the Executive Benefits (as described in Section 5), at no
cost to the Executive in no less than the same amount and, on
the same terms and conditions as in effect on the date on
which the termination of employment occurs for a period of 10
years after the date of termination of the Executive's
employment with the Company, or, alternatively, if the
Executive (or his estate) elects at any time in a written
notice delivered to the Company to waive any particular
Executive Benefits, the Company shall make a



cash payment to the Executive within 10 days after receipt of
such election in an amount equal to the present value of the
Company's cost of providing such Executive Benefits from the
date of such election to the end of the foregoing 10 year
period, and such present value shall be determined by
reference to the Company's then-current cost levels and a
discount rate equal to 120 percent of the short-term
applicable Federal rate provided for in Section 1274(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code (the "Code") for the month in which the
Termination occurs. In addition, the Company shall pay to the
Executive, within 10 days after said termination, an amount
equal to the sum of (a) the dollar value of vacation time that
would have been credited to the Executive pursuant to the
Company's Vacation Policy (the "vacation Policy") if the
Executive had remained employed by the Company through the
"Anniversary Date" (as defined in the Vacation Policy)
immediately following his termination of employment,
multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number
of days which elapsed from the Executive's Anniversary Date
immediately preceding the date of termination through the date
of such termination, and the denominator of which is 365, plus
(b) the dollar value of vacation time which the Executive was
entitled to have taken immediately prior to the Executive's
termination, which was not in fact taken by the Executive; the
dollar value of vacation time referred to above shall be equal
to the amount which would have been paid to the Executive by
the Company during such vacation time had the vacation time in
fact been taken by the Executive immediately prior to the
Executive's termination. If the Executive dies during the
10-year period following the termination of this Agreement for
any reason (including termination of employment by the
Executive for Good Reason, or the death or disability of
Executive) other than by the resignation of Executive without
Good Reason or a termination by the Company for Cause, the
Company shall provide the Executive Benefits, to the extent
applicable, to the Executive's estate, or make any applicable
cash payments in lieu thereof to said estate. The Executive
shall be deemed to be employed by the Company if the Executive
is employed by the Company or any subsidiary of the Company in
which the Company owns a majority of the subsidiary's voting
securities;

(iii) TERMINATION AUTOMOBILE. The Company shall transfer all
of its interest in any automobile used by the Executive
pursuant to the Company's Executive Automobile Policy (the
"Executive Automobile Policy") and shall pay the balance of
any outstanding loans or leases on such automobile (whether
such obligations are those of the Executive or the Company) so
that the Executive owns the automobile outright (in the event
such automobile is leased, the Company shall pay the residual
cost of such lease).

(iv) EQUALIZATION PAYMENTS. If any of the Termination Payment
will be subject to the tax (the "Excise Tax") imposed by
Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Code") (or any similar tax that may hereafter be
imposed), the Company shall pay to the Executive in cash
additional amounts (the "Gross-Up Payments") such that the net
amount retained by the Executive after deduction from the
Termination Payment and the Gross-Up Payments of any Excise
Tax imposed upon the Termination Payment and any federal,
state and



local income tax and Excise Tax and any other tax imposed upon
the Gross-Up Payments shall be equal to the original amount of
the Termination Payment, prior to deduction of any Excise Tax
imposed with respect to the Termination Payment. The Gross-Up
Payments are intended to place the Executive in the same
economic position he would have been in if the Excise Tax did
not apply. The Gross-Up Payments shall be paid to the
Executive at the earlier of the time that the Termination
Payment is paid to the Executive, or the time when any Excise
Tax relating to said Termination Payment becomes due and
payable. For purposes of determining the Gross-Up Payments
pursuant to this Section 3.B.(i), the Termination Payment
shall also include any other amounts which would be considered
"Parachute Payments" (within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(2)
of the Code) to the Executive, including, but not limited to,
the value of any Executive Benefits and Retirement Payments
made pursuant to the terms of the Amended Retirement Agreement
to the extent provided for by Code Section 280G and final,
temporary or proposed regulations thereunder, and Gross-Up
Payments relating to said amounts shall be paid to the
Executive at the earlier of the time that said amounts are
paid to the Executive, or the time when any Excise Tax
relating to said amounts becomes due and payable.

(v) TAX RATES. For purposes of determining the amount of the
Gross-Up Payment, the Executive shall be deemed to pay Federal
income taxes at the highest marginal rate of Federal income
taxation in the calendar year in which the Gross-Up Payment is
to be made, and state and local income taxes at the highest
marginal rate of taxation in the state and locality of the
Executive's residence on the date of termination, net of the
maximum reduction in Federal income taxes which could be
obtained from deduction of such state and local taxes.

(vi) TAX CALCULATION. Simultaneously with the Company's
payment of the Termination Payment, the Company shall deliver
to the Executive a written statement specifying the total
amount of the Termination Payment and the Gross-Up Payment,
together with all supporting calculations. If the Executive
disagrees with the Company's calculation of either of said
payments, the Executive shall submit to the Company, no later
than 30 days after receipt of the Company's calculations, a
written notice advising the Company of the disagreement and
setting forth his calculation of said payments. The
Executive's failure to submit such notice within such period
shall be conclusively deemed to be an agreement by the
Executive as to the amount of the Termination Payment and the
Gross-Up Payment. If the Company agrees with the Executive's
calculations, it shall pay any shortfall to the Executive
within 20 days after receipt of such a notice form the
Executive, together with interest thereon accruing at the rate
of 18 percent per annum, compounded monthly, from the original
due date of the Termination Payment through the actual date of
payment of said shortfall. If the Company does not agree with
the Executive's calculations, it shall provide the Executive
with a written notice within 20 days after the receipt of the
Executive's calculations advising the Executive that the
disagreement is to be referred to an independent accounting
firm for resolution. Such disagreement shall be referred to an
independent "Big 4" accounting firm which is not the regular
accounting



firm of the Company and which is agreed to by the Company and
the Executive within 10 days after issuance of the Company's
notice of disagreement (if the Parties cannot agree on the
identity of the accounting firm which is to resolve the
dispute, the accounting firm shall be selected by means of a
coin toss conducted in Palm Beach County, Florida by counsel
to the Executive on the first business day after such 10 day
period in such a manner as such counsel may specify). The
accounting firm shall review all information provided to it by
the Parties and submit a written report setting forth its
calculation of the Termination Payment and the Gross-Up
Payment within 15 days after submission of the matter to it,
and such decision shall be final and binding on all of the
Parties. The fees and expenses charged by said accounting firm
shall be paid by the Company. If the amount of the Termination
Payment or Gross-Up Payment actually paid by the Company was
less than the amount calculated by the accounting firm, the
Company shall pay the shortfall to the Executive within 5 days
after the accounting firm submits its written report, together
with interest thereon accruing at the rate of 18 percent per
annum, compounded monthly, from the original due date of the
Termination Payment through the actual date of payment of said
shortfall.

(vii) SUBSEQUENT RECALCULATION. In the event the Internal
Revenue Service imposes an Excise Tax with respect to the
Termination Payment that is greater than the Excise Tax
calculated hereunder, the Company shall reimburse the
Executive for the full amount necessary to made the Executive
whole in accordance with the principles set forth above,
including any interest and penalties which may be imposed.

(viii) INTEREST ON UNPAID TERMINATION PAYMENT. In the event
that the Company does not pay the Termination Payment by the
due dates specified in this Agreement, then any unpaid amount
shall bear interest at the rate of 18 percent per annum,
compounded monthly, until it is paid.

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT BY RESIGNATION OF EXECUTIVE OR BY
THE COMPANY WITH CAUSE. Upon the termination of the
Executive's employment by the resignation of the Executive
without Good Reason or by the Company with Cause, the
Executive shall be due no further compensation under this
Agreement related to Annual Base Salary, Annual Incentive
Bonus, Executive Benefits, or Termination Payment than what is
due and owing through the effective date of Executive's
resignation. Termination of the Executive's employment under
this Agreement for any reason (whether by the resignation of
the Executive with or without Good Reason or by the
termination of the Company with or without Cause) shall not
affect Executive's rights under the Amended Retirement
Agreement.



RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS.

A.

GENERAL. The Company and the Executive hereby acknowledge and
agree that (i) the Executive is in possession of trade secrets
(as defined in Section 688.002(4) of the Florida Statutes) of
the Company (the "Trade Secrets"), (ii) the restrictive
covenants contained in this Section 8 are justified by
legitimate business interests of the Company, including, but
not limited to, the protection of the Trade Secrets, in
accordance with Section 542.335(1)(e) of the Florida Statutes,
and (iii) the restrictive covenants contained in this Section
8 are reasonably necessary to protect such legitimate business
interests of the Company.

NON-COMPETITION. During the period of the Executive's
employment with the Company and until three years after the
termination of the Executive's employment with the Company,
the Executive will not, directly or indirectly, on the
Executive's own behalf or as a partner, officer, director,
trustee, executive, agent, consultant or member of any person,
firm or corporation, or otherwise, enter into the employ of,
render any service to, or engage in any business or activity
which is the same as or competitive with any business or
activity conducted by Company or any of its majority-owned
subsidiaries; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not
be deemed to prevent the Executive from investing in
securities of any company having a class of securities which
is publicly traded, so long as through such investment
holdings in the aggregate, the Executive is not deemed to be
the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the class of
securities that are so publicly traded. During the period of
the Executive's employment and until three years after the
termination of the Executive's employment, the Executive will
not, directly or indirectly, on the Executive's own behalf or
as a partner, shareholder, officer, executive, director,
trustee, agent, consultant or member of any person, firm or
corporation or otherwise, seek to employ or otherwise seek the
services of any executive of Company or any of its majority
owned subsidiaries.

CONFIDENTIALITY. During and following the period of the
Executive's employment with the Company, the Executive will
not use for the Executive's own benefit or for the benefit of
others, or divulge to others, any information, Trade Secrets,
knowledge or data of a secret or confidential nature and
otherwise not available to members of the general public that
concerns the business or affairs of the Company or its
affiliates and which was acquired by the Executive at any time
prior to or during the term of the Executive's employment with
the Company, except with the specific prior written consent of
the Company.

WORK PRODUCT. The Executive agrees that all programs,
inventions, innovations, improvements, developments, methods,
designs, analyses, reports and all similar or related
information which relate to the business of the Company and
its affiliates, actual or anticipated, or to any actual or
anticipated research and development conducted in connection
with the business of the Company and its affiliates, and all
existing or future products or services, which are conceived,
developed or made by the Executive (alone or with others)
during the term of this



10.

Agreement ("Work Product") belong to the Company. The
Executive will cooperate fully in the establishment and
maintenance of all rights of the Company and its affiliates in
such Work Product. The provisions of this Section 8(C) will
survive termination of this Agreement indefinitely to the
extent necessary to require actions to be taken by the
Executive after the termination of the Agreement with respect
to Work Product created during the term of this Agreement.

E. ENFORCEMENT. The parties agree and acknowledge that the
restrictions contained in this Section 8 are reasonable in
scope and duration and are necessary to protect the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. If any covenant or
agreement contained in this Section 8 is found by a court
having jurisdiction to be unreasonable in duration,
geographical scope or character of restriction, the covenant
or agreement will not be rendered unenforceable thereby but
rather the duration, geographical scope or character of
restriction of such covenant or agreement will be reduced or
modified with retroactive effect to make such covenant or
agreement reasonable, and such covenant or agreement will be
enforced as so modified. The Employee agrees and acknowledges
that the breach of this Section 8 will cause irreparable
injury to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates
and upon the breach of any provision of this Section 8, the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates shall be
entitled to injunctive relief, specific performance or other
equitable relief, without being required to post a bond;
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that, this shall in no way limit any other
remedies which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates may have (including, without limitation, the right
to seek monetary damages). In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of this Section 8 and Section 7 of the
Amended Retirement Agreement, the provisions of this Section 8
shall prevail.

REPRESENTATIONS. Executive hereby represents and warrants to the
Company that (i) the execution, delivery and full performance of this
Agreement by the Executive does not and will not conflict with, breach,
violate or cause a default under any agreement, contract or instrument
to which the Executive is a party or any judgment, order or decree to
which the Executive is subject; (ii) the Executive is not a party or
bound by any employment agreement, consulting agreement, agreement not
to compete, confidentiality agreement or similar agreement with any
other person or entity; and (iii) upon the execution and delivery of
this Agreement by the Company, this Agreement will be the Executive's
valid and binding obligation, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

ARBITRATION. In the event of any dispute between the Company and the
Executive with respect to this Agreement (other than a dispute with
respect to the calculation of the Executive's Termination Payment and
Gross-Up Payment under sub-Paragraph 7(A)(vi) Tax Calculation, which
dispute shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions set forth
in such sub-Paragraph), either party may, in its sole discretion by
notice to the other, require such dispute to be submitted to
arbitration. The arbitrator will be selected by agreement of the
Parties or, if they cannot agree on arbitrator or arbitrators within 30
days after the giving of such notice, the arbitrator will be selected
by the American Arbitration Association. The determination reached in
such arbitration will be final and binding on



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

both Parties without any right of appeal. Execution of the
determination by such arbitrator may be sought in any court having
jurisdiction. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, any such
arbitration will take place in West Palm Beach, Florida and will be
conducted in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration
Association. If the Executive is the prevailing party in any such
arbitration, he will be entitled to reimbursement by the Company of all
reasonable costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees incurred in
such arbitration).

ASSIGNMENT. The Executive may not assign, transfer, convey, mortgage,
hypothecate, pledge or in any way encumber the compensation or other
benefits payable to the Executive or any rights which the Executive may
have under this Agreement. Neither the Executive nor the Executive's
beneficiary or beneficiaries will have any right to receive any
compensation or other benefits under this Agreement, except at the
time, in the amounts and in the manner provided in this Agreement. This
Agreement will inure to the benefit of and will be binding upon any
successor to the Company and any successor to the Company shall be
authorized to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
including the terms and conditions of the restrictive covenants
contained in Section 8 hereof. As used in this Agreement, the term
"successor" means any person, firm, corporation or other business
entity which at any time, whether by merger, purchase or otherwise,
acquires all or substantially all of the capital stock or assets of the
Company. This Agreement may not otherwise be assigned by the Company.

GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of Florida
without regard to the application of conflicts of laws.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement and the Retirement Agreement
constitute the only agreements between Company and the Executive
regarding the Executive's employment by the Company. This Agreement and
the Retirement Agreement supersede any and all other agreements and
understandings, written or oral, between the Company and the Executive
regarding the subject matter hereof and thereof. A waiver by either
party of any provision of this Agreement or any breach of such
provision in an instance will not be deemed or construed to be a waiver
of such provision for the future, or of any subsequent breach of such
provision. This Agreement may be amended, modified or changed only by
further written agreement between the Company and the Executive, duly
executed by both Parties.

SEVERABILITY; SURVIVAL. In the event that any provision of this
Agreement is found to be void and unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, then such unenforceable provision shall be deemed
modified so as to be enforceable (or if not subject to modification
then eliminated herefrom) to the extent necessary to permit the
remaining provisions to be enforced in accordance with the parties
intention. The provisions of Section 8 (and the restrictive covenants
contained therein) shall survive the termination for any reason of this
Agreement and/or the Employee's relationship with the Company.

NOTICES. Any and all notices required or permitted to be given
hereunder will be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when
deposited in United States mail, certified or registered mail, postage
prepaid. Any notice to be given by the Executive



hereunder will be addressed to the Company to the attention of its
General Counsel at its main offices, One Park Place, Suite 700, 621
Northwest 53rd Street, Boca Raton, Florida 33487. Any notice to be
given to the Executive will be addressed to the Executive at the
Executive's residence address last provided by the Executive to
Company. Either party may change the address to which notices are to be
addressed by notice in writing to the other party given in accordance
with the terms of this Section.

16. HEADINGS. Section headings are for convenience of reference only and
shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning or interpretation of
this Agreement or any of its terms and conditions.

17. CANCELLATION OF EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 7, 2002. The
Executive Employment Agreement entered into by and between the
Executive and the Company on March 7, 2002, is hereby cancelled and
terminated as of the effective date of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed and delivered this
Agreement under seal as of the date first above written.

THE GEO GROUP, INC.

By: /s/ John J. Bulfin

Name: John J. Bulfin
Title: Sr. Vice President & General Counsel

EXECUTIVE

By: /s/ George C. Zoley

Name: George C. Zoley
Title: Chairman & CEO
The GEO Group, Inc.
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Exhibit 10.2

AMENDED AND RESTATED
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this
"Agreement") is entered into effective the 4th day of November 2004 by and
between The GEO Group, Inc. (the "Company") and Wayne H. Calabrese (the
"Executive" and, together with the Company, the "Parties").

WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company have previously entered into an
Executive Employment Agreement, dated March 7, 2002 (the "Prior Employment
Agreement"), and an Executive Retirement Agreement, dated March 7, 2002 (as
amended by the Amended Executive Retirement Agreement, dated January 17, 2003,
the "Amended Retirement Agreement"), which set forth the Parties' rights and
obligations with respect to the Executive's employment with the Company and
retirement benefits, respectively;

WHEREAS, the Executive is scheduled to turn age 55 on November 5, 2005,
upon which date he is eligible to retire from the Company and receive the
benefits provided for under the terms of the Amended Retirement Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company wish to amend and restate the
Prior Employment Agreement to facilitate the continued employment of the
Executive as Vice Chairman, President & Chief Operating Officer of the Company
under restructured terms and conditions that will provide the Executive with
additional incentive to remain in the employ of the Company by, among other
things, increasing the amount of the Annual Incentive Bonus (as defined below)
which the Executive is eligible to receive during the term of his employment
with the Company; and

WHEREAS, the terms of this Agreement have been reviewed and approved by
the members of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company (the "Board") and the independent directors of the Board, respectively,
with the assistance of their own separate legal, financial and other advisers;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained herein, and for other valuable consideration the receipt and adequacy
of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

1. POSITION AND DUTIES. The Company hereby agrees to continue to employ
the Executive and the Executive hereby accepts continued employment and
agrees to continue to serve as Vice Chairman, President & Chief
Operating Officer of the Company. The Executive will perform all duties
and responsibilities and will have all authority inherent in the
position of Vice Chairman, President & Chief Operating Officer.

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT AND EMPLOYMENT. The term of the Executive's
employment under this Agreement will be for an initial period of three
(3) years, beginning on the effective date of this Agreement, and
terminating three years thereafter. The term of employment under this
Agreement will be automatically extended by one day every day such that
it has a continuous "rolling" three-year term, unless otherwise
terminated pursuant to Section 7 of this Agreement.



DEFINITIONS.

A. CAUSE. For purposes of this Agreement, "Cause" for the
termination of the Executive's employment hereunder shall be
deemed to exist if, in the reasonable judgment of the
Company's Board of Directors: (i) the Employee commits fraud,
theft or embezzlement against the Company; (ii) the Employee
commits a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude; (iii)
the Employee breaches any non-competition, confidentiality or
non-solicitation agreement with the Company or any subsidiary
or affiliate thereof; (iv) the Employee breaches any of the
terms of this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within
30 days after the receipt of written notice of such breach
from the Company; or (v) the Employee engages in gross
negligence or willful misconduct that causes harm to the
business and operations of the Company or a subsidiary or
affiliate thereof.

B. GOOD REASON. Termination by the Executive of his employment
for "Good Reason" shall mean a termination by the Executive
upon:

(i) A material reduction in the Executive's title or
responsibilities;

(ii) Any reduction in the Executive's Annual Base Salary (as
defined below) or Annual Incentive Bonus;

(iii) A diminution in the Executive's eligibility to
participate in bonus, stock options, incentive awards and
other compensation plans or a diminution in the Executive's
Benefits (as defined below); or

(iv) A change in the location of the Executive's principal
place of employment by the Company of more than 50 miles from
the location at which he was principally employed.

COMPENSATION.

A. ANNUAL BASE SALARY. Executive shall be paid his current annual
base salary of $525,000.00 for the remainder of calendar year
2004 (as such may be amended from time to time, the "Annual
Base Salary"). The Company shall increase the Annual Base
Salary paid to the Executive by applying a cost of living
increase to be determined by the Board of Directors, such
increase to be made effective the 1st day of January of each
year of the employment term. However, under no circumstances
shall the cost of living increase be less than 5% per annum.
The Annual Base Salary shall be payable at such regular times
and intervals as the Company customarily pays its Executives
from time to time.

B. ANNUAL INCENTIVE BONUS. For each fiscal year of employment
during which the Company employs the Executive, the Executive
shall be entitled to receive a target annual incentive bonus
in accordance with the Senior Management Incentive Plan
established by the Board of Directors for determining the
Executive's annual bonus (the "Annual Incentive Bonus"), such
Annual Incentive Bonus to be paid effective the 1st day of
January of each year of the employment term with respect to
the immediately preceding year.



EXECUTIVE BENEFITS. The Executive will be entitled to four weeks of
vacation per fiscal year. The Executive, the Executive's spouse, and
gqualifying members of the Executive's family will be eligible for and
will participate in, without action by the Board of Directors of the
Company or any committee thereof, any benefits and perquisites
available to executive officers of the Company, including any group
health, dental, life insurance, disability, or other form of Executive
benefit plan or program of the Company now existing or that may be
later adopted by the Company (collectively, the "Executive Benefits").

DEATH OR DISABILITY. The Executive's employment will terminate
immediately upon the Executive's death. If the Executive becomes
physically or mentally disabled so as to become unable for a period of
more than five consecutive months or for shorter periods aggregating at
least five months during any twelve month period to perform the
Executive's duties hereunder on a substantially full-time basis, the
Executive's employment will terminate as of the end of such five-month
or twelve-month period and this shall be considered a "disability"
under this Agreement. Such termination shall not affect the Executive's
benefits under the Company's disability insurance program, if any, then
in effect.

TERMINATION. Either the Executive or the Company may terminate the
Executive's employment under this Agreement for any reason upon not
less than thirty (30) days written notice.

A. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT OTHER THAN BY RESIGNATION OF
EXECUTIVE OR TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. Upon the termination of
the Executive's employment under this Agreement for any reason
(including termination of employment by the Executive for Good
Reason, termination of employment by the Company without
Cause, or the death or disability of the Executive) other than
by the resignation of Executive without Good Reason or a
termination by the Company for Cause, the following shall

apply:

(1) TERMINATION PAYMENT. The Executive shall be entitled to
and paid a termination payment (the "Termination Payment")
equal to two years' Annual Base Salary and target level Annual
Incentive Bonus as set forth in Section 4 based upon the then
current salary level, together with any Equalization Payment
required to be paid in accordance with Section 7(A)(iv). The
Termination Payment and the Equalization Payment shall be made
within 10 days of any termination pursuant to this Section
7(A).

(ii) TERMINATION BENEFITS. The Company shall continue to
provide the Executive (and if applicable, his beneficiaries)
with the Executive Benefits (as described in Section 5), at no
cost to the Executive in no less than the same amount and, on
the same terms and conditions as in effect on the date on
which the termination of employment occurs for a period of 10
years after the date of termination of the Executive's
employment with the Company, or, alternatively, if the
Executive (or his estate) elects at any time in a written
notice delivered to the Company to waive any particular
Executive Benefits, the Company shall make a



cash payment to the Executive within 10 days after receipt of
such election in an amount equal to the present value of the
Company's cost of providing such Executive Benefits from the
date of such election to the end of the foregoing 10 year
period, and such present value shall be determined by
reference to the Company's then-current cost levels and a
discount rate equal to 120 percent of the short-term
applicable Federal rate provided for in Section 1274(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code (the "Code") for the month in which the
Termination occurs. In addition, the Company shall pay to the
Executive, within 10 days after said termination, an amount
equal to the sum of (a) the dollar value of vacation time that
would have been credited to the Executive pursuant to the
Company's Vacation Policy (the "vacation Policy") if the
Executive had remained employed by the Company through the
"Anniversary Date" (as defined in the Vacation Policy)
immediately following his termination of employment,
multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number
of days which elapsed from the Executive's Anniversary Date
immediately preceding the date of termination through the date
of such termination, and the denominator of which is 365, plus
(b) the dollar value of vacation time which the Executive was
entitled to have taken immediately prior to the Executive's
termination, which was not in fact taken by the Executive; the
dollar value of vacation time referred to above shall be equal
to the amount which would have been paid to the Executive by
the Company during such vacation time had the vacation time in
fact been taken by the Executive immediately prior to the
Executive's termination. If the Executive dies during the
10-year period following the termination of this Agreement for
any reason (including termination of employment by the
Executive for Good Reason, or the death or disability of
Executive) other than by the resignation of Executive without
Good Reason or a termination by the Company for Cause, the
Company shall provide the Executive Benefits, to the extent
applicable, to the Executive's estate, or make any applicable
cash payments in lieu thereof to said estate. The Executive
shall be deemed to be employed by the Company if the Executive
is employed by the Company or any subsidiary of the Company in
which the Company owns a majority of the subsidiary's voting
securities;

(iii) TERMINATION AUTOMOBILE. The Company shall transfer all
of its interest in any automobile used by the Executive
pursuant to the Company's Executive Automobile Policy (the
"Executive Automobile Policy") and shall pay the balance of
any outstanding loans or leases on such automobile (whether
such obligations are those of the Executive or the Company) so
that the Executive owns the automobile outright (in the event
such automobile is leased, the Company shall pay the residual
cost of such lease).

(iv) EQUALIZATION PAYMENTS. If any of the Termination Payment
will be subject to the tax (the "Excise Tax") imposed by
Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Code") (or any similar tax that may hereafter be
imposed), the Company shall pay to the Executive in cash
additional amounts (the "Gross-Up Payments") such that the net
amount retained by the Executive after deduction from the
Termination Payment and the Gross-Up Payments of any Excise
Tax imposed upon the Termination Payment and any federal,
state and



local income tax and Excise Tax and any other tax imposed upon
the Gross-Up Payments shall be equal to the original amount of
the Termination Payment, prior to deduction of any Excise Tax
imposed with respect to the Termination Payment. The Gross-Up
Payments are intended to place the Executive in the same
economic position he would have been in if the Excise Tax did
not apply. The Gross-Up Payments shall be paid to the
Executive at the earlier of the time that the Termination
Payment is paid to the Executive, or the time when any Excise
Tax relating to said Termination Payment becomes due and
payable. For purposes of determining the Gross-Up Payments
pursuant to this Section 3.B.(i), the Termination Payment
shall also include any other amounts which would be considered
"Parachute Payments" (within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(2)
of the Code) to the Executive, including, but not limited to,
the value of any Executive Benefits and Retirement Payments
made pursuant to the terms of the Amended Retirement Agreement
to the extent provided for by Code Section 280G and final,
temporary or proposed regulations thereunder, and Gross-Up
Payments relating to said amounts shall be paid to the
Executive at the earlier of the time that said amounts are
paid to the Executive, or the time when any Excise Tax
relating to said amounts becomes due and payable.

(v) TAX RATES. For purposes of determining the amount of the
Gross-Up Payment, the Executive shall be deemed to pay Federal
income taxes at the highest marginal rate of Federal income
taxation in the calendar year in which the Gross-Up Payment is
to be made, and state and local income taxes at the highest
marginal rate of taxation in the state and locality of the
Executive's residence on the date of termination, net of the
maximum reduction in Federal income taxes which could be
obtained from deduction of such state and local taxes.

(vi) TAX CALCULATION. Simultaneously with the Company's
payment of the Termination Payment, the Company shall deliver
to the Executive a written statement specifying the total
amount of the Termination Payment and the Gross-Up Payment,
together with all supporting calculations. If the Executive
disagrees with the Company's calculation of either of said
payments, the Executive shall submit to the Company, no later
than 30 days after receipt of the Company's calculations, a
written notice advising the Company of the disagreement and
setting forth his calculation of said payments. The
Executive's failure to submit such notice within such period
shall be conclusively deemed to be an agreement by the
Executive as to the amount of the Termination Payment and the
Gross-Up Payment. If the Company agrees with the Executive's
calculations, it shall pay any shortfall to the Executive
within 20 days after receipt of such a notice form the
Executive, together with interest thereon accruing at the rate
of 18 percent per annum, compounded monthly, from the original
due date of the Termination Payment through the actual date of
payment of said shortfall. If the Company does not agree with
the Executive's calculations, it shall provide the Executive
with a written notice within 20 days after the receipt of the
Executive's calculations advising the Executive that the
disagreement is to be referred to an independent accounting
firm for resolution. Such disagreement shall be referred to an
independent "Big 4" accounting firm which is not the regular
accounting



firm of the Company and which is agreed to by the Company and
the Executive within 10 days after issuance of the Company's
notice of disagreement (if the Parties cannot agree on the
identity of the accounting firm which is to resolve the
dispute, the accounting firm shall be selected by means of a
coin toss conducted in Palm Beach County, Florida by counsel
to the Executive on the first business day after such 10 day
period in such a manner as such counsel may specify). The
accounting firm shall review all information provided to it by
the Parties and submit a written report setting forth its
calculation of the Termination Payment and the Gross-Up
Payment within 15 days after submission of the matter to it,
and such decision shall be final and binding on all of the
Parties. The fees and expenses charged by said accounting firm
shall be paid by the Company. If the amount of the Termination
Payment or Gross-Up Payment actually paid by the Company was
less than the amount calculated by the accounting firm, the
Company shall pay the shortfall to the Executive within 5 days
after the accounting firm submits its written report, together
with interest thereon accruing at the rate of 18 percent per
annum, compounded monthly, from the original due date of the
Termination Payment through the actual date of payment of said
shortfall.

(vii) SUBSEQUENT RECALCULATION. In the event the Internal
Revenue Service imposes an Excise Tax with respect to the
Termination Payment that is greater than the Excise Tax
calculated hereunder, the Company shall reimburse the
Executive for the full amount necessary to made the Executive
whole in accordance with the principles set forth above,
including any interest and penalties which may be imposed.

(viii) INTEREST ON UNPAID TERMINATION PAYMENT. In the event
that the Company does not pay the Termination Payment by the
due dates specified in this Agreement, then any unpaid amount
shall bear interest at the rate of 18 percent per annum,
compounded monthly, until it is paid.

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT BY RESIGNATION OF EXECUTIVE OR BY
THE COMPANY WITH CAUSE. Upon the termination of the
Executive's employment by the resignation of the Executive
without Good Reason or by the Company with Cause, the
Executive shall be due no further compensation under this
Agreement related to Annual Base Salary, Annual Incentive
Bonus, Executive Benefits, or Termination Payment than what is
due and owing through the effective date of Executive's
resignation. Termination of the Executive's employment under
this Agreement for any reason (whether by the resignation of
the Executive with or without Good Reason or by the
termination of the Company with or without Cause) shall not
affect Executive's rights under the Amended Retirement
Agreement.



RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS.

A.

GENERAL. The Company and the Executive hereby acknowledge and
agree that (i) the Executive is in possession of trade secrets
(as defined in Section 688.002(4) of the Florida Statutes) of
the Company (the "Trade Secrets"), (ii) the restrictive
covenants contained in this Section 8 are justified by
legitimate business interests of the Company, including, but
not limited to, the protection of the Trade Secrets, in
accordance with Section 542.335(1)(e) of the Florida Statutes,
and (iii) the restrictive covenants contained in this Section
8 are reasonably necessary to protect such legitimate business
interests of the Company.

NON-COMPETITION. During the period of the Executive's
employment with the Company and until three years after the
termination of the Executive's employment with the Company,
the Executive will not, directly or indirectly, on the
Executive's own behalf or as a partner, officer, director,
trustee, executive, agent, consultant or member of any person,
firm or corporation, or otherwise, enter into the employ of,
render any service to, or engage in any business or activity
which is the same as or competitive with any business or
activity conducted by Company or any of its majority-owned
subsidiaries; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not
be deemed to prevent the Executive from investing in
securities of any company having a class of securities which
is publicly traded, so long as through such investment
holdings in the aggregate, the Executive is not deemed to be
the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the class of
securities that are so publicly traded. During the period of
the Executive's employment and until three years after the
termination of the Executive's employment, the Executive will
not, directly or indirectly, on the Executive's own behalf or
as a partner, shareholder, officer, executive, director,
trustee, agent, consultant or member of any person, firm or
corporation or otherwise, seek to employ or otherwise seek the
services of any executive of Company or any of its majority
owned subsidiaries.

CONFIDENTIALITY. During and following the period of the
Executive's employment with the Company, the Executive will
not use for the Executive's own benefit or for the benefit of
others, or divulge to others, any information, Trade Secrets,
knowledge or data of a secret or confidential nature and
otherwise not available to members of the general public that
concerns the business or affairs of the Company or its
affiliates and which was acquired by the Executive at any time
prior to or during the term of the Executive's employment with
the Company, except with the specific prior written consent of
the Company.

WORK PRODUCT. The Executive agrees that all programs,
inventions, innovations, improvements, developments, methods,
designs, analyses, reports and all similar or related
information which relate to the business of the Company and
its affiliates, actual or anticipated, or to any actual or
anticipated research and development conducted in connection
with the business of the Company and its affiliates, and all
existing or future products or services, which are conceived,
developed or made by the Executive (alone or with others)
during the term of this



10.

Agreement ("Work Product") belong to the Company. The
Executive will cooperate fully in the establishment and
maintenance of all rights of the Company and its affiliates in
such Work Product. The provisions of this Section 8(C) will
survive termination of this Agreement indefinitely to the
extent necessary to require actions to be taken by the
Executive after the termination of the Agreement with respect
to Work Product created during the term of this Agreement.

E. ENFORCEMENT. The parties agree and acknowledge that the
restrictions contained in this Section 8 are reasonable in
scope and duration and are necessary to protect the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. If any covenant or
agreement contained in this Section 8 is found by a court
having jurisdiction to be unreasonable in duration,
geographical scope or character of restriction, the covenant
or agreement will not be rendered unenforceable thereby but
rather the duration, geographical scope or character of
restriction of such covenant or agreement will be reduced or
modified with retroactive effect to make such covenant or
agreement reasonable, and such covenant or agreement will be
enforced as so modified. The Employee agrees and acknowledges
that the breach of this Section 8 will cause irreparable
injury to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates
and upon the breach of any provision of this Section 8, the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates shall be
entitled to injunctive relief, specific performance or other
equitable relief, without being required to post a bond;
provided, however, that, this shall in no way limit any other
remedies which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates may have (including, without limitation, the right
to seek monetary damages). In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of this Section 8 and Section 7 of the
Amended Retirement Agreement, the provisions of this Section 8
shall prevail.

REPRESENTATIONS. Executive hereby represents and warrants to the
Company that (i) the execution, delivery and full performance of this
Agreement by the Executive does not and will not conflict with, breach,
violate or cause a default under any agreement, contract or instrument
to which the Executive is a party or any judgment, order or decree to
which the Executive is subject; (ii) the Executive is not a party or
bound by any employment agreement, consulting agreement, agreement not
to compete, confidentiality agreement or similar agreement with any
other person or entity; and (iii) upon the execution and delivery of
this Agreement by the Company, this Agreement will be the Executive's
valid and binding obligation, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

ARBITRATION. In the event of any dispute between the Company and the
Executive with respect to this Agreement (other than a dispute with
respect to the calculation of the Executive's Termination Payment and
Gross-Up Payment under sub-Paragraph 7(A)(vi) Tax Calculation, which
dispute shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions set forth
in such sub-Paragraph), either party may, in its sole discretion by
notice to the other, require such dispute to be submitted to
arbitration. The arbitrator will be selected by agreement of the
Parties or, if they cannot agree on arbitrator or arbitrators within 30
days after the giving of such notice, the arbitrator will be selected
by the American Arbitration Association. The determination reached in
such arbitration will be final and binding on



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

both Parties without any right of appeal. Execution of the
determination by such arbitrator may be sought in any court having
jurisdiction. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, any such
arbitration will take place in West Palm Beach, Florida and will be
conducted in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration
Association. If the Executive is the prevailing party in any such
arbitration, he will be entitled to reimbursement by the Company of all
reasonable costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees incurred in
such arbitration).

ASSIGNMENT. The Executive may not assign, transfer, convey, mortgage,
hypothecate, pledge or in any way encumber the compensation or other
benefits payable to the Executive or any rights which the Executive may
have under this Agreement. Neither the Executive nor the Executive's
beneficiary or beneficiaries will have any right to receive any
compensation or other benefits under this Agreement, except at the
time, in the amounts and in the manner provided in this Agreement. This
Agreement will inure to the benefit of and will be binding upon any
successor to the Company and any successor to the Company shall be
authorized to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
including the terms and conditions of the restrictive covenants
contained in Section 8 hereof. As used in this Agreement, the term
"successor" means any person, firm, corporation or other business
entity which at any time, whether by merger, purchase or otherwise,
acquires all or substantially all of the capital stock or assets of the
Company. This Agreement may not otherwise be assigned by the Company.

GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of Florida
without regard to the application of conflicts of laws.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement and the Retirement Agreement
constitute the only agreements between Company and the Executive
regarding the Executive's employment by the Company. This Agreement and
the Retirement Agreement supersede any and all other agreements and
understandings, written or oral, between the Company and the Executive
regarding the subject matter hereof and thereof. A waiver by either
party of any provision of this Agreement or any breach of such
provision in an instance will not be deemed or construed to be a waiver
of such provision for the future, or of any subsequent breach of such
provision. This Agreement may be amended, modified or changed only by
further written agreement between the Company and the Executive, duly
executed by both Parties.

SEVERABILITY; SURVIVAL. In the event that any provision of this
Agreement is found to be void and unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, then such unenforceable provision shall be deemed
modified so as to be enforceable (or if not subject to modification
then eliminated herefrom) to the extent necessary to permit the
remaining provisions to be enforced in accordance with the parties
intention. The provisions of Section 8 (and the restrictive covenants
contained therein) shall survive the termination for any reason of this
Agreement and/or the Employee's relationship with the Company.

NOTICES. Any and all notices required or permitted to be given
hereunder will be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when
deposited in United States mail, certified or registered mail, postage
prepaid. Any notice to be given by the Executive



hereunder will be addressed to the Company to the attention of its
General Counsel at its main offices, One Park Place, Suite 700, 621
Northwest 53rd Street, Boca Raton, Florida 33487. Any notice to be
given to the Executive will be addressed to the Executive at the
Executive's residence address last provided by the Executive to
Company. Either party may change the address to which notices are to be
addressed by notice in writing to the other party given in accordance
with the terms of this Section.

16. HEADINGS. Section headings are for convenience of reference only and
shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning or interpretation of
this Agreement or any of its terms and conditions.

17. CANCELLATION OF EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 7, 2002. The
Executive Employment Agreement entered into by and between the
Executive and the Company on March 7, 2002, is hereby cancelled and
terminated as of the effective date of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed and delivered this
Agreement under seal as of the date first above written.

THE GEO GROUP, INC.

By: /s/ John J. Bulfin

Name: John J. Bulfin
Title: Sr. Vice President & General
Counsel

EXECUTIVE

By: /s/ Wayne H. Calabrese

Name: Wayne H. Calabrese

Title: Vice Chairman, President & Chief
Operating Officer

The GEO Group, Inc.
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EXHIBIT 10.3

Senior Management Incentive Plan

Target Incentive Award

Each participant is assigned a Target Incentive Award expressed as a percentage of base salary in effect on December 31st of the plan year. The eligible
positions and target award percentages for participants are as follows:

Target
Position (% of Salary)
CEO 150%
President 120%
CFO 50%
45%

Sr. Vice President

Plan Year

The period over which performance will be measured is the Company’s fiscal year (January 1st — December 31st ).

Performance Measures and Weightings

The plan will measure two financial items which will be weighted as follow:

— 65%

Net Income After Tax
— 35%

Revenue

Award Determination

Based on performance achieved during the year for Revenue and Net Income After Tax, the participants’ award payouts will be a function of performance
against pre-established goals for each measure. The following chart shows this relationship.

Payout as % of

Target Award
Performance Actual Results as % of Net Income
Achieved Business Plan Revenue After Tax
Maximum 120% 150% 150%
Target 100% 100% 100%
Threshold 80% 50% 50%
Below Threshold <80% 0% 0%




EXHIBIT 10.3
Definition of Corporate Income
This definition excludes extraordinary items and changes in accounting principles, as defined by GAAP.

Extraordinary items, as defined by GAAP, include items of a very unusual and infrequent nature, a good example of which is loss incurred in the early
extinguishment of debt.

Changes in accounting principles include those that occur as a result of new pronouncements or requirements issued by accounting authorities such as SEC,
FASB, etc.

Non-recurring and unusual items not included or planned for in the budgeted bonus targets may be excluded from the corporate income before income taxes,
as defined, at the recommendation of management and at the discretion and agreement of the Compensation Committee.

Discretionary Adjustment

For plan participants other than the CEO and President (who shall not be eligible for the discretionary adjustment), the CEO may recommend an adjustment
to an individual’s Incentive Award, subject to review and approval by the Compensation Committee. Individual adjustments will be based upon position as
follows:

Multiply
Position Award by up to:
CFO, Sr. Vice Presidents 150%

Form and Timing of Payments

Payments will be made in cash as soon as practicable after the award amounts are certified by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors as
having been met.

Change in Status

In the event that a participant’s status changes during the plan year, whether due to a promotion, demotion or lateral move, awards for all participants will be
prorated on a monthly basis for the year based on the length of time in each position.

2




EXHIBIT 10.3
Termination of Employment

In the event a participant voluntarily terminates employment or is terminated involuntarily, any award for the year in which the termination occurs will be
forfeited.

Withholding
The Company shall withhold from award payments any federal, state or local taxes required to be withheld.
Discontinuance, Termination of Amendment of Plan

This plan has been established with the bona fide intention and expectation that from year to year it will be deemed advisable to continue it. However, The
GEO Group, Inc. realizes that it may be necessary to terminate the plan, suspend it, or amend it from time to time. The Committee therefore reserves the right,
in its sole discretion, to modify, suspend, discontinue or terminate the plan.

Governance

The plan shall be governed by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of The GEO Group, Inc. The plan shall be administered on a day-to-
day basis by the CEO and the Vice President of Human Resources.



EXHIBIT 31.1

THE GEO GROUP, INC.
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, George C. Zoley, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of The GEO Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly

report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly
report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the
Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and
6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in
other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with

regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.
Date: November 5, 2004
/s/ George C. Zoley

George C. Zoley
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

THE GEO GROUP, INC.
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, John G. O’Rourke, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of The GEO Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly

report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly
report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the
Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and
6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in
other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with

regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.
Date: November 5, 2004
/s/ John G. O'Rourke

John G. O'Rourke
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of The GEO Group, Inc. Corporation (the “Company”) for the period ended September 26, 2004 as

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Form 10-Q”), I, George, C. Zoley, Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Form 10-Q fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1932, as amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
/s/ George C. Zoley

George C. Zoley
November 5, 2004 Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of The GEO Group, Inc. Corporation (the “Company”) for the period ended September 26, 2004 as

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Form 10-Q”), I, John G. O’Rourke, Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Form 10-Q fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1932, as amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
/s/ John G. O’Rourke

John G. O’Rourke
November 5, 2004 Chief Financial Officer




